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Our mission
The Columbia Gas System,
through its subsidiaries, is
active in pursuing opportuni-
ties in all segments of the
natural gas industry and in
related resource development.
Exemplified by Columbia’s
three-star symbol, these sepa-
rately managed companies
work to benefit: System stock-
holders—through competitive
return on their investment;
customers—through efficient,
safe, reliable service; and
employees—through challeng-
ing and rewarding careers.

About the cover

Industry scenes depicted

on the cover represent key
Columbia operations con-
ducted in pursuit of the
corporate mission to seek
opportunities in all segments
of the natural gas industry.

“A day in the life
of Columbia”

The financial and operating
results detailed in this report
are the total of many individual
efforts of Columbia people
working to carry out the cor-
porate mission. Just a few of
these people and their jobs
are shown in the photographs
in this report. They represent
a typical day in the life of the
Columbia Gas System.
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To the Stockholders

John H. Croom,
Chairman, President
and Chief Executive
Officer

Your company’s long-term
prospects are bright. We have
substantive programs in place
to overcome the problems dis-
cussed in the 1987 report, and,
more importantly, are aggres-
sively pursuing projects to
enhance the value of your
investment in Columbia Gas.
Columbia is on the move;
1988 was indeed a year of
notable accomplishments:

We signed an agreement
with Shell Oil Company
looking to reactivation of our
liquefied natural gas termi-
nal and formation of a joint
marketing venture.

We focused our oil and gas
operations closer to our ser-
vice area by selling the East
Coast Canadian properties.

We announced important
new market expansions for
both the transmission and
distribution properties.

We lowered supply costs
for both the transmission
and distribution operations.

While the bottom-line bene-
fits of these actions will not be
immediately evident, we are
moving ahead.

| also count as progressive
the action taken in April 1988
to bring the common stock
dividend into balance with our
nearterm earnings outlook.
We could not continue to
maintain the prior dividend
rate under the volatile condi-



tions prevailing in the natural
gas business. By adjusting
the rate, we maintained a
sound financial base upon
which all segments of the
enterprise can work to realize
future business opportunities.

| am not satisfied with the
financial results summarized
on page 1 and detailed else-
where in the report. The per-
share earnings of $2.46 in
1988 are consistent, however,
with the dividend level estab-
lished in April and on a par
with our earnings experience
over the last several years.
While our efforts to raise earn-
ings to a level appropriate to
the equity investment in the
corporation are taking longer
than expected, the 1988
numbers evidence a stable
organization, one that is deal-
ing realistically to resolve its
problems and to capitalize
on its opportunities.

This report to stockholders
emphasizes the full range of
business activities in the
Columbia System and pro-
vides a summary view of
our goals and strategies.

We are bullish on the ability
of the natural gas business to
meet the nation’s energy
needs and, as important,
to help it deal with growing
environmental problems. The
potential contributions of
natural gas are increasingly
recognized by government
leaders, as well as by plan-

ners in the private sector.

Our mission is to capitalize

on these new and expanding
market openings for the bene-
fit of the stockholders.

Success is not guaranteed.
As an industry we face the
fact that development of new
supplies has lagged in this
decade as a result of the
price decline that followed the
burst of reserve development
at the end of the 70s. Prices
have been too low to stimulate
significant investments in
exploration and development.
We do not lack, however, for
reserves awaiting development
domestically and abroad. And
the trend in both gas and oll
prices is upward, providing
comfort on the supply side
and encouraging us in plans
to expand our own exploration
and production segment.

We have made significant
progress in resolving the reg-
ulatory problems that have
necessarily called for exten-
sive discussion in prior reports
to stockholders. While issues
of cost recovery are still before
the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission (FERC) and await
settlement with customers of
our transmission unit, these
are moving steadily to resolu-
tion. Our focus is on the
future, not the past.

We have initiated a major
restructuring of operations in
our transmission segment.




This program positions the
transmission properties to
achieve and maintain a finan-
cial performance that should
be among pipeline industry
leaders. We have outstanding
transmission facilities and

are confident we will restore
the earnings contribution
expected from that segment
of the System.

Our distribution properties
have been expanded by the
acquisition of Lynchburg Gas
Company in Virginia, solidify-
ing our operations in that
prosperous state. We plan to
combine all retail operations
in Virginia into one company—
Commonwealth Gas Services,
Inc. The management struc-
ture of all the distribution
companies has been stream-
lined to improve their
competitive capacity.

Looking to the future,
we have set a 1989 capital
budget that is approximately
55 percent above the 1988
capital outlays. The $480
million budget provides for
increased expenditures in
all major segments of the
System. The largest portion—
$215 million—is allocated to
transmission facilities where
new business construction
will account for a large share
of the outlays. Construction
in support of new business

accounts for more than half
the $132 million allocated

to the distribution segment.
Expenditures in the oil and
gas segment, which have
been depressed by the low
level of energy prices, will
increase by about 70 percent
to approximately $121 million.

Longer range, we foresee
that capital expenditures for
the oil and gas segment will
increase both in absolute
amounts and as a portion of
the total budget, expanding
the relative asset size of this
segment. Rising oil and gas
prices are expected to improve
substantially the profit from
investment in exploration
and production.

We continue to work closely
with the legislative and admin-
istrative branches of govern-
ment on matters affecting the
progress of Columbia and the
industry as a whole. Proposals
in Congress concerning such
matters as wellhead prices,
atmospheric pollution, energy
taxes, and energy supply are
certain to be high on the
legislative agenda. The
energy policies of the new
administration will have an
influence on Columbia, and
| have already written to Pres-
ident Bush to state our views.
In the regulatory area, recent
policies of the FERC have
sought to encourage free-



market forces in the pipeline
industry, but the traditional role
of regulation is difficult to
abandon. Many issues still
await resolution. Columbia
maintains a strong presence
in Washington to express its
position and respond to
government concerns.
Competition in the gas busi-
ness will continue to increase,
as the industry undergoes
structural and regulatory
changes. Just as we are
seeking to expand beyond
traditional markets, other com-
panies are trying to penetrate
our historic service areas. This
departure from traditional
ways of doing business in
a closely regulated industry
challenges all components of
the Columbia System. To be
profitable, we must meet that
competition. As we move into
the decade of the 90s, | am
confident that Columbia has
the people and resources to
do just that.

St Croom

John H. Croom
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer

February 16, 1989




System Profile

The Columbia Gas System is one of the largest
natural gas systems in the United States and is
made up of a parent holding ceompany and
operating subsidiaries engaged in the produc-
tion, purchase, storage, transmission and
distribution of natural gas at wholesale and
retail. The System is divided into the operating
segments—oil and gas, transmission, distribu-
tion and other operations—described below.

The schematic chart depicts the various
channels by which natural gas moves through
the System from wellhead to burner tip.

0il and gas
The System holds varying interests amounting
to 3.4 million net acres throughout the United
States and Canada. Domestic oil and gas
operations are focused in the Appalachian and
Michigan Basins, the Williston Basin, the Pow-
der River Basin and the Gulf Coast areas of
Texas and Louisiana. Domestic offshore hold-
ings include varying interests in federal blocks,
most of which are located in the West Cameron,
Veermilion, Eugene Island and Ship Shoal areas.
Canadian cil and gas operations extend from
the Arctic Islands and Northwest Territories
through western mainland provinces.

Gas transmission

Columbia Gas Transmission Corporation sells
at wholesale and transports natural gas to
affiliated and unaffiliated customers through its
18,800-mile pipeline network serving parts of
eleven mid-Atlantic and Midwest states and the
District of Columbia. Columbia Transmission
also operates extensive storage facilities and is
the System’s principal purchaser of natural gas
from producers in the Southwestern, Midconti-
nental and Appalachian areas. A major part of
Columbia Transmission's southwest gas supply
is delivered by Columbia Gulf Transmission
through its 4,300-mile pipeline network stretch-
ing from offshore Louisiana to Kentucky. Gulf
also transports gas for unaffiliated customers
and has ownership interests in the Ozark Trans-
mission System and Trailblazer Pipeline
System. An intrastate pipeline network of nearly
600 miles in Virginia is operated by Common-
wealth Gas Pipeline Corporation. Columbia
LNG Corporation owns an idle liquefied natural
gas plant in Cove Point, Maryland.

Oil and Gas Gas Transmission
Net Acreage (000) Net Gas Productive Wells 6.203 Total Th;oLg-h;:-u;f_Bc_ﬂ 1,.-?21- | S{o-r-age Capaci!y; (LB;I) . 698
Developed R 1,4;4?_ Net Oil Productive Wells 405 Sale§ V{Ed]—w o -365 | Wéaa_(fa_pital é;en-wdnure_s N -
Undevel(-)p_ed 2.005_ 1 Oil and Gas Produ_clion _ . - © T millions) : 103
Pr;vec! Hese-r\;es N Natural -Guas (Bcf) 75 Transporlgtfon_ (Bci)_ 5352
Natural Gas (Bcf) 898 | Oil (000 Bols) o8
’ 1988 Capital Expenditures '
Qil (000 Bbls) 14 904 ($ in millions) 71

é Gas sold to system units f Sales to affiliated utilities

: Transportation for affiliated utilities
Exploration Natural "

and Qil sold to others Gas

Production Transmission Transportation to unaffiliated utilities

Gas sold
to others Sales to unaffiliated utilities

Transportation for
system end-users !

Transportation for
off-system end-users

Gas from other pipelines

Gas from other producers

Transportation of gas
from others




Gas distribution

The corporation has seven distribution sub-
sidiaries which provide natural gas service to
more than 1.8 million residential, commercial
and industrial customers in Ohio, Pennsylvania,
Virginia, Maryland, New York, and Kentucky. In
addition, these subsidiaries are actively
involved in transporting gas for industrial and
large commercial users who purchase gas
from other sources. A distribution network of
more than 29,000 miles of pipe reaches the
principal communities of Columbus, Lorain,
Parma, Springfield and Toledo, Ohio; New
Castle, York and a part of Pittsburgh, Pennsyl-
vania; Binghamton, New York; Cumberland
and Hagerstown, Maryland; Staunton and
Portsmouth, Virginia; and Ashland, Frankfort
and Lexington, Kentucky.

Gas Distribution

| Total Throughput B2) 469

Retail Customers

Residential 1,665,135 | 1988 Capital Expenditures
na Bl ‘L ($in m\\\lciri I JI_D
Commercial 157 440
Industrial and Other 2358 |
Toal 182483 |

Sales of gas to residential and

0 commercial customers

Sale of gas to industrial customers
Natural

Gas
Distribution

Transportation of gas for end-users

Other operations

The System has two subsidiaries that sell
propane at wholesale and retail to more than
50,000 customers in Virginia, Ohio, Kentucky,
and Pennsylvania.

System-owned coal reserves in the Appala-
chian area exceed 650 million tons. Some
reserves are leased to others for development.

A new subsidiary, TriStar Ventures Corpora-
tion, has joined with an affiliate of a major elec-
tric utility in a partnership to construct and
operate cogeneration plants throughout the
United States.

The Columbia Gas System Service Corpo-
ration provides data processing, financial,
accounting, legal, research, and other services
for the parent company and other affiliates.

Other Operations

Coal Reserves ‘

(Million Tons) 650 | Propane Cuslomers - 50016
1988 Capital Expenditures

($ in millions) 24 | Gallons Sold (000) 73,268




Columbia: The Years Ahead
An interview with the CEO

As the Columbia Gas System
moves toward the decade of

the 90s, Chairman and CEO

John Croom discusses where
the corporation intends to go
and how.

Question: What are Colum-
bia’s objectives as it looks at
the next decade?

Croom: In our strategic plan-
ning, we have set as our first
objective allocating the Sys-
tem's capital to activities most
responsive to the long-term
business opportunities we
perceive. In the near term,
our primary strategy is to
restore the earnings of our
largest operating subsidiary,
Columbia Gas Transmission.
Longer range, we seek higher
profitability and greater diver-
sification by increasing the
relative size of our exploration
and production activities.

Question: So you see a bright
future for the gas business?

Croom: Most certainly. The
demand, in fact the need, for
natural gas is expected to
increase steadily. Not only will
historic markets grow, but the
uses of gas as a motor fuel
and for electric generation,
both functions linked to

the nation's environmental
concerns, are expected to

expand significantly. Almost

all observers—industry, govern-
ment, financial analysts—see
the coming years as the natu-
ral gas era in the nation's
energy history.

Question: As Columbia
moves into the future, do you
see the composition of the
System changing?

Croom: Yes. Al the present
time, more than half of our
investment is in transmission
properties, about a quarter in
distribution properties and
most of the remainder in ail
and gas operations. We intend
to bring the three segments
more into balance, primarily by
increasing investment in the
exploration and production
business.

Question: |s Columbia geared
up for the industry's new com-
petitive environment?

Croom: We are marketing-
oriented all the way from well-
head to burner tip. We must
approach every operation by
asking: how does it serve our
customers? The expected
increase in demand for natural
gas will be felt through the
whole System. While pro-
jections vary, one recent
private study estimated that
over the next 20 years the

United States can increase its
use of natural gas by approx-
imately one-third. Even if that
estimate is on the high side,
the implications for all seg-
ments of the business are
significant.

Question: How is Columbia
going after some of the
business?

Croom: Much of the increase
will result from the fact that the
use of natural gas will contrib-
ute in a major way lo easing
our nation's air pollution prob-
lems. For example, natural gas
is a clean-burning motor fuel
and is expected to find a
major market with urban transit
systems where current diesel
engines cannot meet future

air cleanliness standards.
Columbia is one of two gas
companies funding develop-
ment of a prototype transit bus
which will use natural gas. We
expect that bus to be in com-
mercial service in Columbus,
Ohio, later this year.

Similarly in electric genera-
tion, natural gas can replace
or supplement coal and oil to
reduce present pollution levels.
Our cogeneration venture was
launched in 1987, and we fore-
see a steady expansion there.
Opportunities for co-firing of



gas with other fuels in our
service area are expected

to develop, and we are con-
ducting original research
directed at that market. We
expect our transportation busi-
ness of moving gas owned

by major power companies

to grow. Indeed, in January
1989, Columbia Transmission
announced two long-term con-
tracts to sell gas to be used in
electric generation, one to a
major New England utility.

Question: What about the con-
ventional residential market?

Croom: While we already
serve a very high percentage
of the homes in our market
area, our studies show that
significant opportunities exist
in the years ahead for increas-
ing base load sales to existing
customers—such as water
heaters, appliances and gas
lights—with little additional
capital investment. We also
can convert non-gas homes
by extending gas mains into
areas not currently served. Our
estimates are that construction
of single-family and multi-fam-
ily homes will be at a higher
level than in the 1980s, provid-
ing greater sales opportunities.
Through our own research pro-
gram and those of others, we
have developed new gas

Senior gas controllers Roger Grubbs (left) and Bill
Wilson at Columbia Gas Transmission's dispatching
center in Charleston, W. Va., get ready to meet a new
days demands for gas, as furnaces switch on and
factories open. On a cold winter's day, throughput on the
company’s pipeline system exceeds 5 billion cubic fest.



equipment for multi-family
units, enabling us to now serve
a market once almost totally
electric. A high-rise con-
dominium completed last year
in Columbus, Ohio, has indi-
vidual gas heating, cooking
and water heating units, and is
a showplace for our marketing
activities.

Question: Will the commercial
market be growing?

Croom: Developing technol-
ogy for gas-fueled vehicles—
both bus and truck fleets—is
expected to have a substantial
impact on commercial sales,
There also are opportunities in
space conditioning, both cool-
ing and heating, and we
continue to pursue the evident
preference for gas in food ser-
vice equipment.

Question: Has your industrial
market improved from where it
was a few years ago?

Croom: It certainly has; the
time when people talked
about a “rust belt” is gone.
Thanks in considerable mea-
sure to our area development
people, industrial use of gas
is strong and will grow in the
years ahead. We have major
automobile assembly plants in
our service territory, and these

[0 Columbia’s Retail Service Area

New gas meters are loaded by customer service
personnel Linda Thorne and Dick Zerman as they
prepare 1o make the day's customer hookups. In 1988,
approximately 34,000 new retail customers were brought
on line by Columbia distribution companies.



are attracting scores of sup-
pliers who open new facilities.
Many other types of industries
are also adding to the demand
for gas, and we have a strong
research program to develop
new or improved utilization
technigues.

Question: Are you looking for
acquisitions in the distribution
segment?

Croom: We are always on the
lookout. The merger of Lynch-
burg Gas Company into the
System in 1988 solidified our
position in Virginia, which is
one of the states with greatest
growth potential in our service
area. | expect there will be
opportunities in the years
ahead, and if the price makes
sense for the stockholders
interests, we will act.

Question: Cost of gas and
the assurance of supply are
key concerns both for distri-
bution companies and utility
commissions. Has Columbia
changed in its distribution
supply patterns?

Croom: Qur distribution
companies must have access
to the most economical sup-
plies, consistent with their

Propane
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8:35 AM

Driver Ed Curtis of Columbia’s propane marketing

company in Virginia delivers fuel used for home heating.

Propane service provides the benefits of gas energy to
thousands of residential, commercial and industria!
consumers not currently connected to a gas main.
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utility obligation to serve. The
distribution companies have
done two things: they have
diversified their supply
sources by building pipeline
connections to interstate
pipelines other than their affili-
ate, Columbia Gas Trans-
mission; and they have made
direct purchases from pro-
ducers when price terms are
favorable, moving the gas
through the interstate pipelines
available to them. In sum, they
are strong on the supply side
going into the 90s.

Question: You said marketing
is the moving force all over the
System. How is the transmis-
sion segment reaching out?

Croom: Columbia Gas Trans-
mission has a farreaching
plan in place to focus the
attention of all its employees
on the need to improve return
on invested capital, and the
way to do this is through the
fullest utilization of facilities.
This means close attention to
the needs of customers; what
services they want and how
Columbia can provide them.

Question: How is the focus on
marketing working?

Croom: Columbia Transmis-
sion expanded in a major way
in 1988 by beginning deliv-
eries to utilities in New Jersey

Columbia’s Major Pipeline Network
Construction Pending

o Underground Storage

and Delaware. It already has
contracted to transport gas for
a utility in Rhode Island, and is
awaiting federal approval to
construct the necessary con-
necting line. Late in 1988, the
company contracted to sell
gas to a utility in North Car
olina, our first venture in that
state—but not our last, | am
sure. Early in 1989, as | men-
tioned earlier, Columbia Trans-
mission signed to deliver gas
for a large electric utility in
Massachusetts and to expand
significantly service to New
Jersey. All of these are con-
tracts that extend into the next
century. With our access to
ample reserves and excellent
facilities, we'll be expanding
further in the future. In an
industry where competition

is the way of life, we look on
the whole eastern part of the
country as our hunting ground.

Question: How does your
LNG project with Shell tie in to
all that you have discussed?

Croom: It's a perfect fit with
the expected increase in
demand and the strategic
location of our facilities to
serve the East Coast. We have
contracted to sell Shell Oll
Company a half-interest in our
subsidiary which owns a

liquefied natural gas (LNG)
import terminal on Chesa-
peake Bay, a facility that has
been idle for more than eight
years. That sale will take place
if certain conditions are met
over the next two years. Itis
also planned that Shell and
Columbia will form a part-
nership to market the LNG
throughout the eastern states.

Question: Can imported LNG
be competitive?

Croom: Yes. LNG producers
now have a realistic view of the
U.S. gas market. We expect
that our partnership will be
competitively marketing LNG
from our terminal as early as
mid-1991.

Question: You've talked about
building up the exploration
and production segment.
What is planned?

Croom: With the financial con-
straints we have experienced
in the last few years, capital
outlays for exploration and
production have necessarily
been reduced. For several
years we were at levels only
about half of what had been
invested in the early 80s. We
feel the time is right to invest
additional capital into the
acquisition and development
of oil and gas reserves. Our



capital budget for 1989 is up
about 70% from the previous
year, and we plan to increase
the budgets in the 90s.
Question: Is Columbia set up
to expand its E&P program?

Croom: Definitely. First of all
we have disposed of our inter
est in Canadian offshore east
coast properties, which could
have absorbed tremendous
sums in the coming years
without any nearterm return.
We are, therefore, positioned
to direct our E&P investments
in areas closer to our markets.
We are proud to have talented
people in our E&P affiliates,
who are primed to step up
activity. We also have a sub-
stantial acreage position in

promising hydrocarbon basins.

Question: How do you trans-
late all of the programs you
have discussed into a benefit
for the stockholders?

Croom: In the most funda-
mental way. We are committed
to earnings improvements
that will support dividend
increases.

[0 North American Acreage Holdings

Columbia research engingers Ed Reid and Norm Malcosky
review plans for a natural gas-fueled transit bus targeted
for commercial production by 1991. Higher air pollution
standards taking effect at that time are expected to force
current diesel engines off the road, opening broad new
markets for gas in fueling bus and truck fleets.
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Transmission Operations

Restructuring for

the future

The transmission segment

of the gas industry has been
buffeted since the early 1980s
by two conditions: a surplus
of available supply nationwide
and the FERC's policy deci-
sion to allow competitive
forces to have greater influ-
ence on the business. These
two conditions have forced
pipeline companies and their
employees to transform their
traditional methods of opera-
tion and planning. They have
required that they adopt a
“competitive” mindset and
forget years of “regulatory”
response to events.

For the System’s largest
operating unit, Columbia
Transmission, the transition
has required major transforma-
tions in marketing practices,
customer relations, pricing
policies, and supply manage-
ment. Such changes are not
accomplished in just a few
months, but developments in
1988 evidenced the coming
together of many individual
initiatives, and as the year
ended the company had in
place an integrated program
of actions expected to restore
the earnings performance of
the transmission segment of
the System.

Specifically, Columbia
Transmission in 1988 attracted
new customers in nontradi-
tional market areas such as
New England and North Car-
olina. In addition, Columbia
Transmission neared comple-
tion of its program to restruc-
ture gas purchase contracts
with nonaffiliated pipeline
suppliers to better balance its
supply with its obligations to
serve the market and enhance
its competitive position. Lastly,
Columbia Transmission imple-
mented recovery of its own
and its pipeline suppliers
contract reformation costs.

Market initiatives

In spite of a continuing
customer swing from sales
merchant services to transpor
tation services and compet-
itive pressures from other gas
and energy suppliers, Colum-
bia Transmission registered
strong throughput perfor-
mance in 1988.

Columbia Transmission's
growing marketing strength is
a direct result of its efforts to
extend its market areas into
nontraditional service terri-
tories, intensify its marketing
effort in its traditional service
area and maintain competitive
services and rates. Prospects
for an even stronger perfor

mance in the marketplace of
the 1990s have been enhanced
by a number of identifiable
programs to expand Columbia
Transmission's markets along
the East Coast.

Initiation of service to
Delmarva Power and Light
Company in Delaware and
South Jersey Gas Company
in New Jersey in early 1988
has proven to be successful.
Deliveries to both markets
exceeded 12 hillion cubic feet,
considerably higher than the
company’s expectations. These
markets hold considerable
promise for sustained growth.

' In its expansion program
into the Northeast, Columbia
Transmission expects to receive
environmental clearance and
FERC authorization to begin
construction of facilities this
summer to provide new gas
service to New Jersey Natural
Gas Company and increased
service to Elizabethtown Gas
Company totaling approx-
imately 8 billion cubic feet
annually. Additionally, Calum-
bia Transmission has recently
applied to serve a cogenera-
tion facility under construction
near Westville, New Jersey,
with firm transportation of 18
billicn cubic feet annually.

Marking its initial pene-
tration into New England,



Columbia Transmission filed
an application with the FERC
to provide service in Rhode
Island to Providence Gas
Company and in Massachu-
setts to New England Power
Company. The agreement with
Providence Gas Company
provides for annual sales and
transportation deliveries of 15
billion cubic feet, while the
New England Power Company
arrangement calls for firm
transportation service of 17
billion cubic feet a year to
help meet increased electric
generating needs and improve
air quality by replacing
residual fuel oil.

In the mid-Atlantic region,
Columbia Transmission has
applied to initiate direct sales
service to Virginia Natural Gas
Company to complement the
firm transportation service that
began in December 1988.
Annual deliveries will total
approximately 2 billion
cubic feet.

And further south,
Columbia Transmission, in
another FERC application,
is seeking authorization to
extend its pipeline facilities
into North Carolina to become
the second interstate pipeline
serving that state. The arrange-
ment with North Carolina
Natural Gas Corporation

Divers help guide a pipeline being built for Columbia in
the Gulf of Mexico as it moves from the lay barge to the
sea floor. The line connects the production platform

to an existing Columbia line, expanding the company’s
offshore transportation capacity.
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initially provides for annual
sales of 6 billion cubic feet.

In addition to its market
expansion programs, Colum-
bia Transmission continues to
emphasize the competitive
fundamentals required to pros-
per in the marketplace. In
1988, Columbia Transmission
expanded its commitment to
provide competitive rates and
services. The company’s sales
rates were competitive with
other pipelines, and it pro-
vided customers attractively
priced transportation options.
Also, Columbia Transmission
bolstered its sales force and
customer service capabilities
which are already generating
considerable benefits.

Service and

supply initiatives

In 1988, Columbia Trans-
mission moved forward with
efforts to adjust its service
offerings and supply portfolio
to better reflect the changing
needs and preferences of
the market.

The new market initiatives
are aimed explicitly at recog-
nizing that local distribution
companies and end-users are
less reliant on Columbia Trans-
mission for merchant sales and
more dependent on Columbia
Transmission's transportation
and storage services. The

process required to restructure
these complex relationships
is necessarily lengthy and will
ultimately have to be reflected
in Columbia Transmission's
tariffs and customer service
agreements. Upon comple-
tion, Columbia Transmission
will have defined its merchant
role with much more precision
and will be in an improved
pasition to realize the value

of its extensive transportation
and storage operations.

As to gas supply, Columbia
Transmission continued to
adjust its purchase commit-
ments consistent with its
reduced merchant role. In
1988, Columbia Transmission
neared completion of its com-
prehensive pipeline supply
restructuring program. The
effort is aimed at minimizing
other pipelines as a source of
supply, thereby reducing gas
purchase costs. To maintain
flexibility, Columbia Trans-
mission is converting much of
its remaining contract entitle-
ments to firm transportation
services so that it can serve
markets which are dependent
upon these pipelines for phys-
ical deliveries, while providing
Columbia Transmission with
capacity to access more
competitive producer supplies
in the Southwest.

Having restructured its high-
cost pipeline supply contracts,
Columbia Transmission will
obtain future supply require-
ments largely from producers
under long-term market-sen-
sitive contracts. With these
arrangements, Columbia
Transmissicn can access
required guantities of gas
from a diversity of producing
regions, maintain purchasing
flexibility and exert substantial
control over its gas supply
costs. In the future, by virtue
of its extensive pipeline capac-
ity holdings and open access
transportation, Columbia
Transmission will have the
opportunity to tap supplies in
virtually every major domestic
location, as well as in Canada.
In addition, Columbia Trans-
mission will have access to
LNG which is to be delivered
into the heart of its market
area by Columbia LNG Cor
poration if the pending agree-
ment with Shell Oil Company
is completed. Columbia Trans-
mission is constantly reasses-
sing its supply arrangements
to ensure it maintains the abil-
ity to react rapidly to changing
market requirements.

During 1988, Columbia
Transmission continued to
address the few remaining
producer contracts with



unacceptable provisions. As
discussed in some detail in
Note 10 of the Notes to Con-
solidated Financial State-
ments, Columbia Transmission
is involved in a number of
lawsuits with certain producer
suppliers. Management
believes that it is probable that
Columbia Transmission will
prevail in these proceedings
and, accordingly, their resolu-
tion should not have a material
adverse effect on the corpora-
tion's financial position or
results of operations.

Regulatory initiatives
The System’s 1987 Annual
Report detailed many of the
frustrating regulatory and
court proceedings, including
certain adverse orders issued
in early 1988, which have
impeded Columbia Transmis-
sion’s transition into the era

of increased competition.
Columbia Transmission has
continued to aggressively seek
resolution of these troubling
matters through litigation and
at the negotiating table. Dur-
ing the last half of 1988, there
was considerable progress:

Contract reformation costs
2 In July, the FERC per
mitted Columbia Transmission
to begin collecting, subject to
refund, $281 million of its con-

tract reformation costs under
the Commission's Order No.
500 procedures. Although
the FERC directed that further
hearings be conducted to
determine the extent of Colum-
bia Transmission's recovery cf
such costs, management
believes that, based on prior
FERC rulings and precedents,
Columbia Transmission should
retain substantially all amounts
being collected.

= Some of Columbia Trans-
mission’s pipeline suppliers
have also filed for recovery of
their contract reformation costs
under Order No. 500. While
the FERC has not accepted
Columbia Transmission’s
arguments challenging the
pipelines cost allocation pro-
cedures, the Commission at
the end of October gave
Columbia Transmission final
approval to recover these
direct-billed amounts from its
customers in a timely fashion.
As expected, certain custom-
ers have sought court review
of this approval on various
grounds. Management believes
the courts will affirm the FERC's
approval and that all such
pipeline supplier Order No.
500 costs billed to Columbia
Transmission will be recovered.

Gas purchasing issues

# Columbia Transmission's
purchasing practices, as
reflected in its PGA filings,
continue to be challenged.
Acting on the basis of hear-
ings held in August 1988 to
consider these challenges, a
FERC administrative law judge
in February 1989 issued an
initial decision which found
Columbia Transmission's con-
duct to be proper. However, in
his initial decision, the law
judge also determined that a
1985 rate settlement bars the
recovery of any of the cost of
over 18 Bcef of gas purchased
and injected into storage
inventory in 1986 and with-
drawn in 1987 for sale to
customers. The law judge's
decision did not explicitly
address an additional 27 Bcf
of gas, which was purchased
and injected into storage in
1986, but has not yet been
withdrawn. The gas cost in
guestion is approximately
$3.25 per Mcf. Columbia
Transmission considers this
decision to be inconsistent
with the intent of the 1985
settlement, and takes strong
exception to this initial finding.
After the submission of legal
briefs, this matter will go to
the FERC for its consideration.

1:20 PM
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A separate hearing has
been scheduled for the spring
of 1989 to formulate a price
cap to apply to gas purchases
after March 31, 1987, under
contracts covered by a Janu-
ary 1988 FERC abuse finding.
The Commission is still consid-
ering various arguments
advanced by Columbia Trans-
mission which would signif-
icantly dampen the adverse
impact of a price cap.

As the discussion of regula-
tory matters in Note 2 of the
Notes to Consoclidated Finan-
cial Statements indicates,
considerable uncertainty
remains, principally because
of the complex, interrelated
nature of the proceedings.
Nevertheless, the recent FERC
developments have, for the
most part, provided additional
clarification, and, in certain
instances, have given Colum-
bia Transmission added reason
to be optimistic about its pros-
pects if it were required to
resolve each matter by liti-
gation. More encouraging,
however, has been the resump-
tion of constructive settlement
negotiations with customers to
resolve these issues. While
prepared to litigate if neces-
sary, Columbia Transmission’s
long-standing preference has
been to resolve these pro-
ceedings by way of
settlement.

In an unrelated matter, the
FERC, in an order issued in
January 1989, authorized a
pipeline supplier of Columbia
Transmission to retroactively
collect higher prices for gas
it produced and sold between
1979 and 1983. The order,
which permits the pipeline
supplier to direct bill Columbia
Transmission and other cus-
tomers for the price increase
based on their levels of pur-

chases during the period,

is an abrupt reversal of the
FERC's long-standing position
that the pipeline supplier
should recover the higher
prices through a surcharge
added to its current com-
modity sales rate. Columbia
Transmission intends to seek
reversal of this action. As Note
2 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements indi-
cates, management believes
the FERC order contains a
number of factual and legal
flaws and that Columbia Trans-
mission has a reasonable
chance of prevailing.

Volumes

Total throughput for the trans-
mission segment increased
only 1% in 1988 despite the
fact that 1988 was approx-
imately 11% colder than 1987.
This occurred primarily
because of the timing of the
1987 and 1988 heating season
deliveries of prepaid gas
which reduced the reparted
sales volumes by 49 Bcf.

Reduced sales volumes of
25 Bcef in 1988 were more than
offset by the 34 Bcf increase in
transportation volumes. Long-
haul transportation for local
distribution companies and
end-users increased by 52 Bef
in 1988, while short-haul trans-
portation volumes in the
Southwest, which command
a lower transportation margin,
decreased by 18 Bcf.

In 1987, throughput levels
were higher by 149 Bcf or 14%
over 1986 levels. The 252 Bcf
or 43% increase in transporta-
tion volumes more than offset
the sales decline of 103 Bcf
or 21% experienced in 1987.
The sales decline is primarily
attributable to customers pur
chasing cheaper gas on the
spot market. As was the case
in 1988, the increase in trans-

Transmission Gas Throughput
(in billion cubic feet)

B Total Transportation  [E Total Sales

portation volumes reflects
customers taking advantage
of Columbia Transmission’s
competitive transportation
rates to transport spot
market gas supply.

Revenues

Total revenues increased by
$87.6 million in 1988. The
increase is attributable to
$183.7 million of revenue
adjustments which relate to
the passthrough of upstream
pipeline take-or-pay and con-
tract reformation costs and
other unbilled gas costs,
neither of which affect oper-
ating income, offsetting the
effect of recorded estimated
rate refunds.

Excluding these revenue
adjustments, revenues
decreased $122 million in 1988
primarily due to the impact of
lower average prices and the
shift in throughput from sales
to transportation. Sales vol-
umes generate higher revenue
per unit of throughput than do
transportation volumes
because the commodity cost
of the gas is included in the
sales price. The reduction in
prices reflects the lower prices
placed into effect on April 1,
1987. Significantly higher sales
prices, fixed by the 1985 cus-



Transmission Financial Results

Gas Transmission ($ in Millions) 1988 1987 1986 1985 1884
Unaffiliated Revenues 1,080.3 1,083.2 1,464.6 1,679.1 N 1,919.3
Intersegment Revenues 777.8 896.9 T 191 1,551.9 16435
Adjustments* 183.7 (25.9) (92.4) — —
Total Revenues 2,041.8 19542 24913 3,231.0 3,462.8
Operating Income (loss) 148.6 179.1 167.6 (326.4) 2241
Depreciation and Depletion 90.6 102.2 114.6 136.9 120.7
Capital Expenditures 102.6 100.9 60.7 55.6 96.2
Identifiable Assets 3,251.3 3,127.0 3,362.1 3,630.3 3,045.2

“The revenue adjustments relate to the passthrough of
upstream pipeline take-or-pay and contract reformation
costs and other unbilled gas costs, neither of which affect

rate refunds. The portion of these adjustments applicable to
affiliated distribution companies is eliminated in consolida-
tion. Prior period revenues have been reclassified to conform

operating income, offsetting the effect of recorded estimated

tomer settlement agreement,
were in effect during the first
quarter of 1987.

Total revenues declined sig-
nificantly in 1987 for similar
reasons. Although total
throughput was up by 14%
in 1987, sales volumes were
down by 21%.

Operating income
Operating income in 1988
was $148.6 million compared
with $179.1 million in 1987
and $167.6 million in 1986.
The decrease in operafing
income in 1988 was due to:

The beneficial effect in
1987 of a prior rate settlement.

Rate refund adjustments
in 1988 relating to issues
before the FERC.

Competitive pressures
on margins. Additional flexing
of transportation rates was
required in 1988 to meet ail
and gas-to-gas competition.

Lower margins reflecting
the full year's impact of lower
federal income tax rates.

This decline is offset in

income tax expense.
These reductions were

partially offset by:

The recovery of contract
reformation costs by Columbia
Transmission and the associ-
ated reduced amortization of
these prepaid gas purchased

to the 1988 presentation.

costs from the prior years.
Columbia Transmission placed
rates into effect August 1,
1988, under Order No. 500,
subject to refund, to recover
$281 million of its contract
reformation costs over a five-
year period. Of this amount,
$94 million is to be collected
through nonvolumetric direct
biling charges and $187
million through volumetric
surcharges on both sales
and transportation volumes.
The $94 million portion has
been treated as an accounts
receivable and a reduction to
prepayments for producer
contract modifications.
Contributing to the $11.5
million increase in operating
income in 1987 was the 14%
improverment in throughput
and the reduction to 1986
earnings due to a $65 million
reserve for unrecovered gas
purchased costs. The increase
was offset in part due to:
Recording increased
unrecovered gas costs caused
by March 1987 and January
1988 regulatory rulings, retro-
active to April 1, 1986, relating
to the ability of Columbia
Transmission to recover funds
expended to reform certain
gas purchase contracts as

well as increases in other rate
refund reserves.

Increased operation and
maintenance costs.

Reductions in rates to
reflect lower federal income
tax rates, which were offset
in net income through lower
income tax expense.

Columbia environmentalist Dr. Don Gartman checks
the work site on a pipeline construction project in
southern Pennsylvania. As pipelines are built to serve
new markets, care is taken to protect land and water
resources and to exceed regulatory standards.
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Distribution Operations

As the distribution companies
prepare for the 1990s, man-
agement is focusing on posi-
tioning prices, services and
supply portfolios to meet the
needs in a highly competitive
market. Management con-
tinues to implement additional
operating efficiencies that will
allow profitable growth in an
era of increased competition
and an increasingly complex
regulatory environment.

Among the accomplish-
ments for the distribution
companies in 1988 were:

= Continuation of economic
development efforts which
contributed to attracting $1.46
billion of new investment and
10,300 new jobs in their ser
vice area.

m Completion of new inter-
state pipeline interconnections
that provide increased supply
flexibility through access to
two of the largest interstate
pipeline systems.

m Execution of the distribu-
tion companies first long-term
contract for gas supplies from
a Southwest producer as part
of a gas procurement program
aimed at providing a “best
cost” secure supply of gas.

= Significantly improved
earnings over 1987. As a
group, the distribution com-

panies recorded the second
highest earnings level in
their history.

= The merger of two Vir
ginia distribution operations—
Columbia Gas of Virginia into
Commonwealth Gas Services.
This merger will provide the
Richmond-based company with
improved services and signifi-
cant operating efficiencies
through economies of scale.

® Acquisition of Lynch-
burg (Va.) Gas Company.
Lynchburg Gas, which serves
approximately 10,400 custom-
ers, will be merged with
Commonwealth Gas Services
in mid-1989. The combined
company will serve more than
117,000 customers.
Pricing and
regulatory
environment
Columbia’s distribution
companies are among the
industry’s leaders in design of
services and their pricing, the
central element of a success-
ful marketing strategy. In the
past several years, they have
made significant progress in
unbundling rates and allocat-
ing expenses to the customer
classes responsible for those
expenses.

These service design
changes have allowed the dis-

tribution companies to offer a
menu of services to fit custom-
ers specific needs in the highly
competitive industrial market.
Examples are flexible trans-
portation rates to meet com-
petition from alternate fuels,
programs in which the distri-
bution companies act as agent
for the end-user in acquiring
gas supplies and inexpensive
mainline service pricing for
customers within close prox-
imity to an interstate pipeline.

In accordance with FERC
Order No. 500, pipelines are
pursuing recovery from their
customers of producer take-
or-pay settlement and contract
reformation costs. The direct
billings to the distribution com-
panies principally relate to
their share of the take-or-pay
and contract reformation costs
of Columbia Transmission's
pipeline suppliers and to a
lesser extent to Columbia
Transmission’s own Order
No. 500 direct billings.

These direct billings could
be approximately $160 million
over five years. Columbia’s dis-
tribution companies have been
actively working with their
respective state utility commis-
sions and consumer groups to
assure they are allowed full
and timely recovery of these
costs while, at the same time,



Number of Retail Customers
Served at Year End
(in thousands)

84 85 86 87 a8

assuring that the prices of their
distribution services are com-
petitive. Columbia’s distribution
companies in Virginia and
Kentucky have received state
commission approval to
recover the billings related to
these costs. Columbia Gas of
Maryland and Columbia Gas
of Ohio are recovering these
costs subject to refund as is
Columbia Gas of New York on
a partial basis. Columbia Gas
of Pennsylvania is deferring
these costs pending review by
its state utility commission.

Market expansion
Economic conditions vary within
the six-state area served by the
distribution companies. The out-
look is especially positive in
portions of Ohio, Kentucky and
Virginia, which are served by
the distribution companies.

The distribution companies
strong growth of 13.1 billion
cubic feet in industrial through-
put in 1988 is indicative of this
resurgence, with three-fourths
of this industrial growth occur
ring in Ohio. This additional
industrial throughput is the
largest increase in nearly
two decades.

Ohio is not only moving to
restructure its economy, but
is also expanding such tradi-
tional manufacturing industries

Degree Days

(vanation from normal in percent)

B Warmer than Normal
Colder than Normal

e | -
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Columbia educational specialist Bernadette Guest
explains the company’s “latchkey” information program
to fourth grade elementary schoal pupils in Ohia. Part of
Columbia’s educational assistance activities, the program
provides guidance to children who must be alone at
hame after school hours
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Distribution Financial Results

1985

1984

2,152.8 2,459.6
2,152.8 2,459.6
1357 129.2
38.3 305
80.8 76.6
1,519.0 1,315.5

Gas Distribution (s in Millions) 1988 1987 1986
He;f;eﬁues 1,678.9 1,619.1 1,907.3
Adjustments” 109.9 1.0 (46.2)
Total Revenues 1,788.8 1,620.1 1,861.1
Operating Income 140.7 108.6 184.7
Depreciation and Depletion 48.5 471 45.9
Capital Expenditures 110.4 105.8 101.0
Identifiable Assets 1,576.9 1,488.4 1,472.0
*The revenue adjusiments relate to: (1) the passthrough of

upstream pipeline take-or-pay and other unbilled gas costs
from the affiliated pipeline; (2) the passthrough of estimated

rate refunds lo be received from the affiliated pipeline; and presentation

as steel, fabricated metals,
petroleumn and chemicals.

Major new business in the
industrial sector includes a
joint venture between Ford and
Nissan at Avon Lake, Ohio; the
expansion of Cushwa Brick in
Maryland and the displace-
ment of coke utilized in blast
furnaces by U.S. Steel in
Lorain, Ohio. These projects
will provide nearly 4 billion
cubic feet of new annual
throughput.

Population growth in Ken-
tucky, Ohio and Virginia is
expected to support a high
level of new housing starts in
the metropolitan areas. The
Lexington, Kentucky, area is
beginning to enjoy the benefits
associated with the expansion
of the Toyota auto manufactur-
ing facility, which is served by
one of the distribution com-
panies. Virginia continues to
exhibit a strong economy,
especially in the eastern half
of the state. Wages and
housing starts should remain
strong around the Washington,
D.C., area.

Cogeneration activity is
increasing in Columbia-served
areas. Gas deliveries by dis-
tribution companies to cogen-
eration customers is expected
to increase from 1 billion cubic
feet in 1988 to over 6 billion

cubic feet in 1989. Based
on cogeneration plants under
construction or in the design
phase, gas deliveries to cogen-
eration systems could increase
to more than 20 billion cubic
feet by the early 1990s.
Competition
Competitively priced sales
and transportation services
have enabled the distribution
companies to deal success-
fully with the bypass threat.
However, they continue to
closely monitor this situation.
In cases of competition
from alternate fuels, the distri-
bution companies have been
successful in retaining load
through innovative design of
services and their pricing.
The standing of natural gas as
a premium, economic, efficient
and environmentally safe fuel
makes it particularly suited for
many industrial applications.

Research for

new markets

Columbia’s research program
continues its focus on the
development of innovative gas-
fired equipment to open new
gas markets and to deepen

penetration in existing markets.

Examples of encouraging
progress include:

Plans and design work
were completed for a new
transit bus which will operate

(3) rate refunds related to distribution operations. Neither
items (1) or (2) affect operating income. Prior period
revenues have been reclassified to conform to the 1988

on natural gas only. The bus
will be tested by the Central
Ohio Transit Authority in Colum-
bus, Ohio, beginning in mid-
1989 to prove its ability to
provide acceptable and eco-
nomical service, while meeting
stricter pollution standards.

Gas-heated radiant
tubes are being developed
for high-temperature industrial
processes which require a
controlled atmosphere in the
furnace. Such systems could
open up substantial market
applications.

Columbia and its spon-
sors are developing a catalytic
process using natural gas to
remove sulfur oxides and nitro-
gen oxides from the flue gases
of utility coal boilers. A field
test will be made in 1989.

Columbia is holding
discussions with potential
licensees for the manufac-
turing and marketing of its
internally developed absorp-
tion heat pump technology.

Volumes
Total throughput increased
48 Bcf or 11% in 1988.

Sales volumes rose 29 Bef
in 1988 primarily because of
colder weather.

Transportation volumes rose
19 Bcf in 1988 due to:

Market-responsive trans-
portation rates and services



Distribution Gas Throughput
(in billion cubic feet)

M Tolal Sales [ Total Transportation

offered to compete primarily
with the cost of alternate fuels.

The continued availability
of lower-cost spot market gas.

Aggressive marketing pro-
grams which increased com-
mercial and industrial load.

Continued economic
recovery in the service ler-
ritory, especially in the steel
industry.

Total throughput increased
1% in 1987. The availability of
spot market gas for industrial
and large commercial custom-
ers helped increase volumes
transported by 36 Bcf in 1987.
The low cost of spot gas,
coupled with competitive
transportation rates, allowed
the distribution companies to
regain most of the load lost
earlier to price competition pri-
marily from alternative fuels.

Sales volumes for 1987
were lower than 1986 because
of warmer weather as average
temperatures were slightly
warmer than the previous year
and 6% above normal. Addi-
tionally, sales volumes were
lower because of switching
to transportation service.

Revenues

Total revenues increased
$168.7 million in 1988.
Included in total revenues are
revenue adjustments which

relate to the passthrough of
upstream pipeline take-or-pay
and other unbilled gas costs
from the affiliated pipeline and
the passthrough of estimated
rate refunds to be received
from the affiliated pipeling,
neither of which affect oper-
ating income. Also included in
these revenue adjustments are
rate refunds related to distribu-
tion operations.

Excluding revenue adjust-
ments, revenues increased
$59.8 million in 1988 primarily
because of colder weather
and the effect of a rate refund
reserve recorded in 1987,
These improvements were par-
tially offset by lower margins,
reflecting reductions in federal
income tax rates and rate
reductions.

Total revenues decreased
in 1987 although throughput
remained steady. The decline
in total revenues was attribut-
able to lower average sales
rates reflecting lower gas
costs and increasing replace-
ment of industrial and com-
mercial sales revenues with
transportation service reve-
nues, which exclude the
cost of gas.

Operating income
Operating income was higher
by $32.1 million in 1988 primar
ily because of colder weather
and the effect of a rate refund
reserve recorded in 1987,

This improvement occurred
despite higher depreciation
and other operating expenses,
net rate reductions and lower
federal income tax rates
reflected in revenues, which
were offset in net income
through lower income tax
expense. The higher operating
expenses must be recovered
in rates if the distribution
operations are to maintain an
adequate level of earnings.

Operating income in 1987
declined $76.1 million. This
decline was primarily caused
by a favorable adjustment
recorded in 1986 related to the
recovery of certain uncollectible
amounts previously expensed.
Additionally, warmer weather,
the recording of a rate refund
reserve, rate reductions and
lower federal income tax rates
reflected in revenues contrib-
uted to the decline. These
reductions were partially offset
by increased operating income
from transportation services.
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Oil and Gas Operations

Low wellhead prices continue
to adversely affect oil and gas
operations. Nevertheless, the
System has been successiul
in maintaining its reserve
position.

Market conditions

Low wellhead prices con-
tinued to depress the earnings
of the System's exploration
and production operations;
however, the decline in gas
prices in the past several
years appears to have bot-
tomed out. The average price
for domestic gas production
was $1.74 per Mcf in 1988
compared with $1.68 per Mcf
in 1987 while prices for
domestic oil production and
other liquids declined to
$13.66 per barrel from $15.99
per barrel in 1987. Gas prices
for the System's Canadian
operations also stabilized
while prices for oil and other
liquids declined to $12.10 per
barrel compared with $14.66
per barrel in 1987.

Spot gas prices exhibited a
similar pattern to that experi-
enced in the last few years by
strengthening in the healing
season and then softening
during the months of off-peak
demand. During the summer
and fall, oil prices approached
the depressed levels of 1986

due to excess world supply
and adequate inventories.
However, with the November
1988 production accord
reached by the OPEC mem-
bers, West Texas Intermediate
oil prices rebounded by $5
per barrel to over $18 per
barrel at year-end 1988.

As in the past two years,
production in 1988 was slightly
below full deliverability. Some
of Columbia's working interest
partners have decreased pro-
duction when prices were felt
to be abnormally soft. To max-
imize revenue, Columbia, to
the extent possible, has been
scheduling well workovers in
the summer when prices
are lower.

Long-term outlook

While oil and gas prices
remain considerably below the
levels earlier in the decade, the
prospect far future price
increases is favorable.

Growth in oil consumption,
especially within developing
nations, will cause world
demand for oil to increase.
Although oll prices are
expected to remain volatile in
the next few years, the declin-
ing crude production from
non-OPEC sources should put
upward pressure on ail prices.

The prospect for higher
domestic gas prices is partic-

Gas Production
{in billions of cubic feet)
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ularly favorable. The depressed
wellhead prices of the past
several years have severely
reduced drilling activity. Con-
sequently, nationwide gas
reserve additions have not
replaced production. As the
current excess deliverability
of gas comes into balance
with demand, wellhead prices
should continue to strengthen.
In addition to a tightening of
supply, the demand for natural
gas remains strong because
of its favorable environmental
impact compared to other
fossil fuels and its lower asso-
ciated capital requirements for
utilization as compared to
other forms of energy.

Strategy

Columbia’s strategy for its
exploration and production
operations is to ensure that the
segment is positioned to par-
ticipate in the turnaround
when product prices begin

to escalate. The System has
demonstrated itself to be a
cost-efficient explorer and
developer of hydrocarbons.
Systemwide finding costs are
comparable to, or superior o,
industry averages. With the
prospect for higher prices and
improved profitability, the Sys-
tem is committed to increasing
the relative size of the oil and
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gas segment to more nearly
equal the System’s transmis-
sion and distribution opera-
tions. Oil and gas assets
currently comprise slightly in
excess of 20% of the System’s
net plant.

Columbia will be expanding
its exploration, development
and production activities in the
Gulf of Mexico, the Southwest
and in the Williston and Rocky
Mountain basins while at the
same time pursuing opportuni-
ties for acquisitions.

The System has an exten-
sive acreage position in the
Appalachian basin where its
reserves represent approx-
imately 10% of the basin's
total. The foundation of the
System’s Appalachian opera-
tions is the steady deliver-
ability of its 6,800 producing
wells. In addition, geological
and geophysical evaluations
have identified over 500 eco-
nomically drillable well locations
on the System’s 2.8 million net
acreage position in Appalachia.

The System will continue to
selectively explore in the West-
ern provinces of Canada. The
recent passage of the Free
Trade Agreement between
Canada and the U.S. will help
assure Canadian producers
access to the U.S. markets.
Several major pipeline expan-

Qil Production
(in thousands of barrels)
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sions have been announced to
bring additional Canadian gas
to the California and Eastern
U.S. markets. These projects
will help Columbia Canada to
market its reserves including a
33% share of 50 million cubic
feet per day capacity from the
idle Kotaneelee field located in
the southern Yukon Territory,

In September 1988, Colum-
bia Canada sold its eastern
offshore Canadian oil and gas
properties for $83 million to
Chevron Canada. The major
asset in the sale was Colum-
bia's 5.47% working interest in
the Hibernia block. Retention
of these properties would have
required the System to con-
centrate a disproportionate
share of its future oil and gas
capital investments into a sin-
gle project with expected
production delayed to 1995.

Drilling and
production activities
Systemwide total proved gas
reserves increased to 898 Bcf
in 1988. Domestic gas reserves
increased by 1%, primarily
because of 68 Bef of revisions
to prior estimates. A total of
43 Bcf of the revisions is attrib-
utable to an extension of the
economic productive reserve
life of wells in the Appalachian
basin. The balance of the revi-
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sions is attributable to favor-
able changes in operating
conditions and reservoir per
formance for its Southwest
wells, Gas reserves in Canada
increased 4%. Total System oil
reserves at year end also
increased by 5%.

Capital expenditures
were down 13% in 1988 after
increasing 22% in 1987 from
1986 levels. Expenditures in
1989 are expected to be
70% higher than in 1988.

Columbia maintained an
active exploration and devel-
opment program in 1988 in
North Dakota, Wyoming. the
Mid-Continent and the
onshore and offshore Gulf
of Mexico regions.

The Appalachian drilling
program had to be reduced
in 1988 because of delays
in establishing new long-term
markets and securing trans-
portation capacity. Near-term
plans of Columbia include
efforts to evaluate prospects
in the Michigan and lllinois
basins in addition to its tradi-
tional drilling program in
Appalachia. Drilling opportuni-
ties also include joint venture
prospects involved in the pro-
duction of methane from coal
seams in southern West Vir-
ginia. This project would
benefit from tax credits of as

25



0il & Gas Financial Results

Qil and Gas (3 in Milons) 1988 1987 1986 1985 1984
Unaffiliated Revenues 130.4 1125 65.0 156.2 98.8
Intersegment Revenues 313 542 106.8 97.7 1935
Total Revenues 161.7 163.7 171.8 253.9 292.3
Operating Income 35.2 41.2 14.8 100.9 133.9
Depreciation and Depletion 70.7 66.1 94.6 84.7 92.4
Capital Expenditures 711 815 66.8 78.2 921
Identifiable Assets 709.1 779.9 746.8 766.7 836.7
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much as $.80 per dekatherm
as an incentive for producing
natural gas from nontraditional
sources such as Devonian
shale and coal seams.

Columbia Canada will drill
the large Crow River prospect
in northeast British Columbia
in 1989. Columbia Canada has
a 65% working interest in a $9
million well which is located
25 miles southwest of the
Kotaneelee field. Elsewhere,
Columbia Canada’s efforts will
be progressively shifting from
the search for oil in the medium-
depth areas of Alberta to the
search for gas in the deeper
basin areas fronting the Rocky
Mountains in Alberta and Brit-
ish Columbia.

Revenues and volumes
Total revenues declined negli-
gibly in 1988 after decreasing
5% in 1987. Unaffiliated reve-
nues rose in 1988 and 1987 as
more of the production was
being sold on the spot market
at prices higher than being
offered by affiliates.

The average domeslic gas
prices for the last two years
have not materially changed
after falling 20% from the 1986
rates. The modest increase in
price received for southwest
gas production in 1988 was
partially offset by a decline in
the price for Appalachian gas.
Canadian gas prices also lev-
eled off in 1988 after declining
14% in 1987. Average System
ail prices fell 15% per barrel in
1988 after rebounding slightly
in 1987 from the sharp decline
in 1986.

Gas production has not
materially changed in the last
three years. Modest increases
in oil production were achieved
in both 1988 and 1987.

Operating income

The decline in 1988 operating
income reflects the $6.9 million
writedown of the Canadian

oil and gas assets. The write-
down in the carrying value of
the assets was required
because of the low oil and gas
prices in the second quarter of
1988. Operating income
increased significantly in 1987
due to writedowns in 1986 of
the Canadian assets totaling
$26.6 million.

In accordance with full cost
accounting rules, the entire
proceeds from the sale of the
eastern Canadian properties
have been credited to the
Canadian cost center. As a
result, operating income will
improve approximately $2.5
million annually due to the
effect of lower depletion
expense in the future.



Other Operations

In pursuit of its mission to

be active in diversified energy
markets related to the natural
gas business, the System con-
ducts operations in several
other fields.

Propane marketing
Propane ranks fourth in sup-
plying the nation's energy
needs. The market for this
versatile fuel has been grow-
ing steadily since 1982,
primarily in suburban and
rural areas beyond natural
gas mains.

Columbia Hydrocarbon
Corporation markets propane
to retail customers primarily in
Ohio and Pennsylvania. During
1988, Columbia Hydrocarbon
Corporation sold its fractiona-
tion plant in order to con-
centrate on the retail market
for propane.

Commonwealth Propane,
Inc., is a major propane mar-
keter in Virginia, with a well-
balanced mix of residential,
agricultural, industrial and
commercial customers.
During 1988, Commonwealth
Propane shipped approx-
imately 31 million gallons of
imported propane from Atlantic
Energy, Inc.

Coal activities

During 1988, Columbia con-
tinued to sublet its coal prop-
erties. Approximately 25,000
acres, consisting of some 35
millicn tons of recoverable coal
reserves, have been leased to
a company which plans to
start production in the second
quarter of 1989 at the rate

of 500,000 tons per year. A
number of small- and medium-
sized reserve blocks have
been delineated and are now
being offered for sale or lease
to independent operators for
development.

Columbia sold its Kiah
Creek mineral interest of
approximately 100 million tons
of coal in 1987. Columbia
retains an undivided 50 per
cent ownership in 200 million
tons of reserves dedicated to
the Wayne County, West Vir-
ginia, coal mining venture
discontinued in 1984. In addi-
tion, Columbia owns 450
million tons of other low-sulfur
coal reserves, some of which
are now leased to others for
development.

Cogeneration
investment

Cogeneration is the simul-
taneous production of elec-
tricity and useful thermal
energy from a single, primary
fuel source, such as natural
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gas. According to the Gas
Research Institute, by the year
2000, cogeneration will supply
more than 10 percent of the
nation's electricity needs.

Cogeneration Partners of
America (CPA) provides
Columbia with equity par-
ticipation in cogeneration
projects. It also offers Colum-
bia opportunities to increase
affiliated production company
revenues and throughput on
its pipeline and distribution
system, by supplying natural
gas to projects CPA develops.
CPA is jointly owned by
Columbia’s TriStar Ventures
and a subsidiary of Atlantic
Energy, Inc., a major electric
utility in New Jersey.

As of year end, a cogener
ation plant at Crozer-Chester
Medical Center was in opera-
tion and three other cogener-
ation plants were in final
stages of construction.

CPA has several other
projects in various stages
of development, including
natural-gas-fired plants in
Pedricktown, New Jersey,
and Binghamton, New York.

These projects, which
include cogeneration for For-
tune 500 chemical companies
and major paper operations,
could ultimately consume
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Other Operations Financial Results

Other Operations (s in Millions) 1988 1987 1936 1985 1984
Unaf-fikiated Revenues 7 49.2 53.0 §9:2 99.7 146.2
Intersegment Revenues 63.3 55.6 58.7 101.5 156.1
Total Revenues 112.5 108.6 117.9 201.2 302.3
Operating Income (loss) 4.6 52 52 152 (51.9)
Depreciation and Depletion 3.0 4.6 5.2 7.6 7.5
Capital Expenditures 23.8 10.6 38 53 i)
Identifiable Assets 98.2 1014 100.0 119.2 119.9

more than 10 Bcf per year
of natural gas.

Revenues

Unaffiliated revenues
decreased in 1988 primarily
due to the decline in revenues
brought about by the sale of
the fractionation plant in 1988.
This decrease was partially
offset by an increase in pro-
pane sales.

Unaffiliated revenues
declined in 1987 due to the
discontinuance of synthetic
gas production as of March
31, 1986. Synthetic gas reve-
nues were $12.2 million in
1986. This decline was par-
tially offset by an increase in
revenues from propane opera-
tions in 1987, due largely to an
increase in spot market sales.

Operating income

Operating income for 1988
declined due to the sale of
the fractionation plant. This
decline was partially offset
by an increase in operating

income from the propane _ : 4:15 PM

operations resulting from ; ;

acquisitions and colder Drilling continues on a Columbia well probing for gas in

weather. northern Pennsylvania. Columbia’s exploration efforts are

. ) expected to increase in 1989
Operating income was

unchanged in 1987 as
depressed propane sales
prices offset the effect of
higher sales.



common stock

Earnings on common stock
for 1988 were $111.1 million

or $2.46 per share compared
with 1987 earnings of $100.5
million or $2.30 per share and
1986 earnings of $87.9 million
or $2.12 per share before extra-
ordinary charges totaling $12.6
million or $0.30 per share. The
1986 extraordinary charges
resulted from premiums paid
to refund high-cost debt and
an additional loss incurred in
connection with the prior sale
of a distribution subsidiary.

The $10.6 million earnings
increase reflects much stronger
distribution segment results,
essentially flat oil and gas
results, slightly lower trans-
mission results and signifi-
cantly lower results in the
other segments.

Gas distribution segment
earnings of $63.1 million in
1988 were $23.8 million over
1987 earnings, reflecting
colder weather conditions.
The weather, which was 11
percent colder in 1988 than in
1987, resulted in higher sales
and transportation service.
Additionally, a charge against
1987 earnings of $5.1 million
related to a rate refund by
the Ohio distribution subsidi-

Consolidated Earnings Review
Earnings on ary benefited the yearto-year

comparison. Partially offsetting
the improved results were
higher depreciation and other
operating expenses.

Earnings from the transmis-
sion segment declined $1.1
million from the prior year to
$38.1 million. Contributing
significantly to these results
were recovery of contract
reformation costs by Colum-
bia Transmission under the
FERC’s Order No. 500 and the
associated reduced amortiza-
tion of these prepaid gas
purchased costs. This was off-
set by the beneficial effect in
1987 of a prior rate settlement,
by current year rate refund
adjustments and by competi-
tive pressure on margins,
among other factors.

Earnings in the oil and gas
segment were $8.7 million, rel-
atively unchanged from 1987
as production rates were
essentially equal. Average
prices for the year, while
strengthening in the fourth
quarter, were not significantly
different than 1987. A $6.9
million writedown of the Cana-
dian oil and gas assets was
required because of the low oil
and gas prices in the second
quarter of 1988.

Earnings from other opera-
tions of $1.2 million in 1988

Total System Gas Throughput
(in billion cubic feet)

W Total Sales B Total Transportation

were $11.8 million lower than in
1987. Largely accounting for
this decline was the 1987 sale
of certain coal interests, which
produced earnings on com-
mon stock of $9.1 million.

Revenues

Gas operating revenues
increased in 1988 primarily

as a result of the recording

of receivables for the recovery
of upstream pipeline supplier
take-or-pay and contract refor
mation costs and colder
weather. This was partially off-
set by a reduction in average
sales prices which reflected
significantly reduced gas
costs and, in turn, enabled
Columbia Transmission and
the affiliated distribution
companies to reduce their
commodity sales prices. Sales
revenues also continued to
decline as sales volumes
were replaced with trans-
portation volumes.

Gas operating revenues
declined in 1987 mainly
because of lower average
sales prices. Sales revenues
declined due to the replace-
ment of sales volumes with
transportation volumes.
Additionally, sales volumes
declined in 1987 as a result
of warmer weather that caused
a significant reduction in
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Earnings by Segment before Extraordinary Charges

(in millions of dollars)

i
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a0 !

M Gas Transmission [ Oil and Gas
@ Gas Distribution Il Other

usage by heating customers.
Both transportation revenues
and other revenues were up
slightly in 1988. Transportation
revenues, excluding adjust-
ments, were up 40% in 1987
due to a substantial increase
in transportation volumes.
Other revenues in 1988 were
up $3.4 million due to higher
revenues from the sale of pro-
pane and other hydrocarbons.

Expenses

Products purchased, mainly
gas costs, rose in 1988 pri-
marily due to the effect of
costs recognized to reflect

the passthrough of upstream
pipeline supplier take-or-pay
and contract reformation costs
and the effect of colder
weather. Gas purchased costs
decreased in 1987 and 1986
due to lower sales volumes as
well as a significant reduction
in unit costs.

Operation and maintenance
expenses increased 5% in 1988
and 7% in 1987 after adjusting
1986 expenses, which included
a reduction of $31.1 million
which resulted from favorable
court actions related to the
right to recover the cost of
previously expensed uncol-
lectible accounts. Depreciation
and depletion declined 3% in
1988 and 15% in 1987. The
decrease in 1987 depreciation

and depletion is primarily due
to lower depreciation rates
applicable to transmission
properties.

Interest income

and other, net

Interest income and other, net
decreased $7.8 million in 1988
and increased $12.6 million in
1987. The primary factor influ-
encing both years was the
$13.8 million realized from

the sale of certain coal inter-
ests in 1987.

Interest expense
and related charges

Interest expense and related
charges decreased in 1988
and 1987 due largely to com-
pletion in 1987 of the amorti-
zation of debt discount on
producer settlement obliga-
tions. Long-term debt interest
also declined in both 1988 and
1987 as a result of continued
refunding of high-cost debt.

Income taxes

Income taxes, as detailed

on the Statements of Con-
solidated Taxes, decreased
$14.4 million and $13.7 million
in 1988 and 1987 respectively,
primarily due to the effect of
the reduction in the federal
corporate income tax rates

to 34% and 40%, respectively,
and the effect of a change

in income tax rates on
certain deferred taxes
previously provided.

In 1987 and 1988, the Finan-
cial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) issued pro-
nouncements regarding
accounting for income taxes.
The Corporation expects to
adopt these pronouncements
effective January 1, 1990,
although early adoption is per-
mitted, and does not plan to
restate prior periods. Among
other things, these pronounce-
ments require immediate
financial statement recognition
of changes in tax regulations
by redefining as liabilities
the amounts previously recog-
nized as deferred tax credits
arising from the measure of
the difference between pre-tax
accounting income and stat-
utory income for tax purposes.

These pronouncements
also require that the cumula-
tive effects on accrued future
tax liabilities of future tax rate
changes be recorded in cur
rent earnings except for rate
regulated entities which follow
the accounting and reporting
requirements of Statement of
Financial Accounting Stan-
dards No. 71 of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board,
such as the Corporation’s dis-
tribution subsidiaries.

The Corporation continues
to analyze the effects of
adopting this statement. A
substantial one-time benefit
to non-cash earnings is
expected for the Corporation’s
unregulated operations in the
year of adoption. Regulatory
commissions continue to ana-
lyze the impact of lower
income tax rates and imple-
mentation of their own rules
for determining when excess
deferred taxes will reduce cus-
tomer rates. The FASB is in the



process of providing guidance
on the implementation issues
as a result of concern
expressed by preparers and
auditors of financial state-
ments about the degree of
complexity involved in apply-
ing the provisions of the
pronouncements. Until such
guidance is provided, effects
of adopting the new method
of accounting cannot be rea-
sonably determined.

Effects of inflation
Because the Corporation’s
subsidiaries are engaged in
capital-intensive lines of busi-
ness, the cumulative effects of
inflation require substantially
greater investment to replace
existing productive capacity.
However, such replacements
occur aver extended periods
and revenues generally have
been adequate to recover
plant investment.

During periods of high
inflation, operating cost
increases generally are not
concurrently reflected in
increased revenues due to
the delays inherent in the rate
making process governing the
Corporation’s regulated sub-
sidiaries. Recently, inflation
rates have been increasing
and most of the Corporation’s
distribution subsidiaries have
planned rate filings for 1989
to recover current costs.

Common stock

prices and dividends
The common stock of The
Columbia Gas System, Inc., is
listed on the New York Stock
Exchange, Philadelphia Stock
Exchange and Toronto Stock
Exchange under the symbol
CG. At December 31, 1988,
there were 92,770 stock-
holders of record. The table
to the right shows the divi-
dends paid and the price

Throughput and Revenues 1988 1987 1986
Sales (billion cubic feet):
Residential 195.5 175.1 178.8
Commercial 85.6 79.8 87.2
Industrial 26.9 22.4 A7.7
Wholesale 220.8 2148 283.6
Other 225 18.9 9.2
Total Sales 551.3 511.0 606.5
Total Transportation Volumes 779.4 745.8 541.5
Total Throughput 1,330.7 1,256.8 1,148.0
Gas Operating Revenues ($ in millions):
Residential 1,108.2 1,033.3 1,115.6
Commercial 448.0 426.9 502.7
Industrial 113.1 104.4 223.6
Wholesale 794.7 879.3 1,321.5
Other 40.6 282 16.1
Transportation 34241 306.8 218.7
Adjustments* 190.2 (32.6) (92.4)
Total Gas Sales and Transportation
Operating Revenues 3,036.9 2,746.3 3,305.8
Other Operating Revenues 92.0 88.6 90.3
Total Operating Revenues 3,128.9 28349 3,396.1

“The revenue adjustments relate o the passthrough of upstream pipeline take-or-pay
and other unbilled gas costs offsetting the effect of recorded estimated rate refunds.

Market Price Quarterly
Quarter Ended High Low Close Dividends Paid
s $ $ ¢
1988
December 31 36% 33% 342 50
September 30 35 30Va 332 50
June 30 33% 2674 32% 50
March 31 44% 2674 27% 79.5
1987
December 31 524 35% 404 79.5
September 30 56 47% 514 79.5
June 30 5115 44 50% 79.5
March 31 56vs 45 48% 79.5
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ranges of the Corporation’s
common stock, by quarters,
for the last two years.
Liquidity and

capital resources

Cash from operations
decreased from $684.2 million
in 1987 to $453.8 million in
1988. This decrease is pri-
marily attributable to an
increase in federal tax pay-
ments, payments made to
customers by Columbia Trans-
mission to satisfy a liability
recorded in prior years under
the 1985 customer settlement
agreement and an increase

in working capital.

On October 3, 1988, the
Corporation redeemed all out-
standing shares of its three
preferred stock issues, which
had a total par value of $110
million, to increase its finan-
cing flexibility and reduce its
cost of capital.

On October 5, 1988, the
Corporation entered into two
new bank credit facilities
which have improved pric-
ing terms and less restrictive
covenants than the prior bank
credit facilities. One facility
is a $750 million subordi-
nated five-year revolving
credit agreement. The other
new facility is a $500 million
short-term revolving credit

facility which parallels the new
subordinated facility'’s cove-
nants and provides better
pricing than the $500 million
short-term agreement it
replaced. The unused por-
tions of these facilities are
used as support for the
Corporation’s outstanding
commercial paper and notes.
As of December 31, 1988, the
Corporation had $697.1 million
of commercial paper and
bank loans outstanding.

Upon entering into these
two new bank credit facilities,
the Corporation cancelled a
subordinated revolving credit
agreement, under which $300
million was outstanding, and a
$350 million revolving produc-
tion loan agreement, under
which no borrowings were
outstanding.

The cost of borrowing under
the new subordinated revolv-
ing credit agreement will nor-
mally exceed the cost of the
Corporation's commercial
paper. It is expected that at
least $300 million of the cur
rently outstanding variable rate
debt will continue to be out-
standing for at least twelve
months and, cansequently,
such amount has been
reclassified as long-term debt
on the December 31, 1988,
balance sheel.

During 1988, the Corpora-
tion entered into a series of
interest rate swaps totaling
$300 million in order to reduce
the Corporation’s exposure to
interest rate volatility.

On November 23, 1988, the
Corporation sold through com-
petitive bidding $100 million of
10.15% debentures due 2013,
with an effective cost to the
Corporation of 10.362%. The
Corporation has available
$200 million of debentures
under a shelf Registration

Statement under the Securities
Act of 1933. The Corporation
had approximately $253 mil-
lion of senior debt capacity
available at December 31,
1988, under the most restric-
tive issuance covenant of its
indenture,

Approximately 332,000
shares of common stock were
issued in 1988 under the Divi-
dend Reinvestment Plan and
the Long-Term Incentive Plan.
Proceeds to the Corporation
from the Dividend Reinvest-
ment Program were $10.3
million. During 1988, the Cor-
poration switched to a market
purchase program for the Divi-
dend Reinvestment Plan. It is
anticipated that a minimal
number of new shares will be
issued in the near future under
the Long-Term Incentive Plan.

Approximately 379,000
shares of the Corporation's
common stock were exchanged
on May 23, 1988, for the
approximately 262,000 shares
of Lynchburg Gas Company
common stock outstanding.

During 1988, the Cor-
poration continued a program,
begun in 1986, of accelerating
the retirement of high-cost
debt. This is currently being
pursued under the acceler-
ated sinking fund redermption
provisions included in the indi-
vidual debenture series inden-
tures. These provisions permit
limited periodic redemptions
without the payment of pre-
miums. The 11%4% and 12%:%
debentures were retired
through this method during
1988. It is presently antic-
ipated that the remaining
amount of the 15%:% deben-
tures will be retired by this
method during 1989.



In 1988, the Corporation
paid dividends of $2.295 per
share on its common stock,
On April 20, 1988, the Board
of Directors of The Columbia
Gas System, Inc. reduced the
Corporation’s quarterly com-
mon stock dividend to 50
cents per share, equivalent to
$2.00 per share annually, from
the 79.5 cents per share, or
$3.18 annually, previously
paid. The Board's decision
was largely the result of the
unexpected adverse deci-
sions by the FERC in cases
involving Columbia Transmis-
sion. As of December 31,
1988, the Corporation had
$124.6 million of retained earn-
ings available for common
stock dividends under the
most restrictive covenents of
the Corporation’s indenture
and loan agreements,

The sale of Columbia Gas
Development of Canada, Ltd.'s
eastern offshore properties to
Chevron Canada Resources
for $83 million significantly
improved the Corporation’s
liguidity. Resolution of certain
regulatory matters pending
before the FERC concerning
Columbia Transmission could
require substantial refunds of
amounts already collected
and materially affect the
Corporation's future liquidity.
Revenues collected subject

to refund have reduced the
Corporation’s financing needs
to date. Financing needs are
expected to increase should
these refunds be required. The
refunds have been considered
in establishing the Corpora-
tion's credit facilities and
financing plans.

Capital expenditures
increased from $299 million in
1987 to $308 million in 1988.
Capital expenditures for 1989

are projected to be $480 mil-
lion. Capital expenditures for
the transmission segment are
expected to be $215 million,
an increase of $112 million
from 1988. The majority of the
increase is attributable to
expansion into new markets.
For the distribution segment,
capital expenditures are pro-
jected to increase to $132
million, up $22 million from the
1988 program. This increase is
primarily to serve new custom-
ers. With an expanded drilling
program, capital expenditures
in the oil and gas segment are
projected to be $121 million in
1989 as compared to $71 mil-
lion in 1988.

External financing require-
ments for 1989 are currently
projected to be approximately
$340 million. A significant por-
tion of this requirement is to
finance potential rate refunds
during 1989. Approximately
385 million is for the retirement
of long-term debt. It is expected
that the majority of the 1989
cash requirement will be
obtained from internally gen-
erated cash, the sale of
commercial paper and the
$750 million subordinated
credit facility.

The Corporation believes
that it will have sufficient
resources to meet its future
cash requirements. These
resources include: (1) inter-
nally generated cash, (2) the
additional $556 million avail-
able under current credit
facilities, and (3) senior debt
capacity available under its
indenture. Although not
planned for use, equity financ-
ing is also available.

10:30 PM
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Comparative Gas Operations Data
The Columbia Gas System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

1988 1987 1986 1985 1984°
Sales and Transportation Revenues
($ in millions)
Residential 1,108.2 1,033.3 1,115.6 1,210.6 1,278.7
Commercial 448.0 426.9 502.7 566.6 617.6
Industrial 113.1 104.4 223.6 383.2 592.1
Wholesale 794.7 879.3 13215 1,566.0 1,843.2
Other 40.6 28.2 16.1 12.2 Jhas:
Transportation 342.1 306.8 218.7 200.1 108.0
Adjustments 190.2 (32.6) (92.4) — =
Total sales and transportation revenues 3,036.9 2,746.3 3,305.8 3,938.7 4,454.9
Sales (billion cu. ft)
Residential 195.5 175.1 178.8 181.4 188.5
Commercial 85.6 79.8 87.2 916 97.0
Industrial 26.9 22.4 47.7 73.2 108.1
Wholesale 220.8 214.8 283.6 344 6 385.0
Other 22.5 18.9 9.2 42 43
Total sales 951.3 511.0 606.5 695.0 7829
Transportation volumes 779.4 745.8 541.5 ailils2 4234
Total throughput 1,330.7 1,256.8 1,148.0 1,206.2 1,206.3
Sources of Gas Sold (billion cu. ft.)
Total gas purchased 517.5 4915 596.8 616.9 705.1
Total gas produced (natural and synthetic) 74.6 76.0 73.2 101.0 1255
Exchange gas—net 5.8 (13.1) I3 (10.3) (1.6)
Gas withdrawn from (delivered to) storage (0.2) (4.1) (24.2) 45.0 (1.9)
Company use and other (46.4) (39.3) (47.0) (57.6) (44.2)
Total sources of gas sold 551.3 511.0 606.5 695.0 7829
Customers at Year End
Residential 1,666,013 1,626,341 1,598,960 1,579,279 1,564,460
Commercial 157,475 152,104 148,013 141,859 138,663
Industrial 2,341 2,190 2,180 2,261 2,280
Wholesale 79 82 78 78 75
Other 96 92 41 40 48
Total customers at year end 1,826,004 1,780,809 1,749,272 1,723 517 1,705,526
Average Usage Per Customer (thousand cu. ft.)
Residential 117.4 107.7 111.8 114.8 1205
Commercial 543.6 524.7 589.3 645.6 699.8
Degree Days 5,580 5,029 5,067 5167 5410
Increase (decrease) over normal (%) 3:3 (6.4) (5.7) (3.9 0.1

*Wholesale data include the operation of a distribution company sold in June 1984, lor the entire year.



Selected Financial Data
The Columbia Gas System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

(Dollars in millions except per share amounts) 1988 1987 1986 1985 1984
Income Statement Data ($) (Notes 2A and 2C)
Total operating revenues 3,128.9 28349 3,396.1 4,086.4 4618.4
Products purchased 1,783.0 1,503.1 1,983:9 2,715.2 3,114.6
Earnings (Loss) on common stock from
continuing operations before
extraordinary charges 111.1 100.5 87.9 (107.0) 165.4
Earnings (Loss) on common stock 1111 100.5 153 (107.0) 138.6
Per Share Data
Earnings (Loss) per common share (§):
From continuing operations before
extraordinary charges 2.46 2.30 212 (2.67) 422
Earnings (Loss) on common stock 2.46 2.30 1.82 (2.67) 3.53
Dividends:
Per share ($) 2.295 318 3.18 3.18 3.18
Payout ratio (%) 93.3 138.3 174.7 N/M 90.1
Average common shares outstanding (000) 45,190 43,763 41,436 40,134 39,227
Balance Sheet Data ($)
Capitalization:
Common stock equity 1,552.6 1,523.7 1,448.7 1422.7 1,634.2
Preferred stock — 50.0 50.0 50.0 50.0
Redeemable preferred stock — 60.0 65.0 70.0 75.0
Long-term debt 1,338.4 1,438.0 1,3785 1,659.6 1,348.5
Total capitalization 2,891.0 3.071.7 29422 32023 3,107.7
Total assets 5,641.0 5,440.9 5590.2 - 5,835.2 5,200.5
Other Financial Data
Capitalization ratio (%):
Common stock equity 53.7 496 492 444 52.6
Preferred stack —_ 36 3.9 38 4.0
Long-term debt 46.3 46.8 46.9 51.8 434
Capital expenditures (§) 307.9 298.8 232.3 220.0 272.0
Cash from continuing operations (§) 453.8 684.2 574.0 81.7 725.3
Book value per comman share (8) 34.18 34.08 34.06 35.10 41.22
Return on average common equity
before discontinued operations and
extraordinary charges (%) 6.8 N/M 10.2

7.2

6.1

N/M-Nat Meaningful
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MANAGEMENT’S STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying consolidated financial statements
and related notes have been prepared by the Corpora-
tion based on generally accepted accounting prin-
ciples, and are considered by management to present
fairly and consistently the Corporation’s financial posi-
tion and results of operations. The integrity and
objectivity of the data in these financial statements,
including estimates and judgments relating to matters
not concluded by year end, are the responsibility of
management as is all other information included in

the Annual Report, unless otherwise indicated.

To meet its responsibilities with respect to financial
information, management maintains an accounting
system and related controls to reasonably assure

the integrity of financial records and the protection of
assets. The effectiveness of this system is enhanced

by the selection and training of 'qualified personnel,

an organizational structure that provides an appropriate
division of responsibility, a strong budgetary system of
control, and a comprehensive program of internal audits

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
To the Stockholders of The Columbia Gas System, Inc.;

We have audited the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets of The Columbia Gas System, Inc. (a
Delaware corporation) and subsidiaries (the “Corpora-
tion") as of December 31, 1988 and 1987, the related
statements of consolidated income, taxes and comman
stock equity for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 1988, the related consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year ended December
31, 1988 and the related consolidated statements of
changes in financial position for each of the two years

in the period ended December 31, 1987. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Corporation’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examin-
ing, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presenta-
tion. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of The Columbia Gas System, Inc. and subsidi-
aries as of December 31, 1988 and 1987, and the results
of their operations for each of the three years in the

designed, in total, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the adequacy of internal controls and imple-
mentation of company policies and procedures. The
internal audit staff is under the direction of the Vice
President and General Auditor who reports directly

to the Chairman of the Board.

An audit committee assists the Board of Directors in
its oversight role and is composed of seven directors
who are not officers or employees of the Corporation.
The audit committee meets periodically with the Vice
President and General Auditor to review his work and
to monitor the discharge of his responsibilities. The
audit committee also meets periodically with the Cor-
poration’s independent public accountants, who have
free access to the audit committee of the Board, to
discuss internal accounting controls, auditing and
financial reporting matters.

period ended December 31, 1988, their cash flows for
the year then ended and the changes in their financial
position for each of the two years in the period ended
December 31, 1987, in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 2A, Columbia Gas Transmission
Corporation (“Columbia Transmission™) is involved in

a number of proceedings before the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission (“FERC") related to its ability
to recover certain gas purchased and other costs.

The outcome of these proceedings cannot be predicted
by management.

As discussed in Note 2C, the FERC issued an order

in January 1989 authorizing a pipeline supplier of
Columbia Transmission to retroactively collect higher
prices from its customers for gas it produced and sold
in prior years. Although management believes the order
contains a number of factual and legal flaws and
Columbia Transmission has a reasonable chance of pre-
vailing, the ultimate outcome of this matter is uncertain.
Accordingly. no provision for any liability that may result
from this matter has been made in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

As discussed in Note 1J, the Corporation, as required
by generally accepted accounting principles, has pre-
sented a consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year ended December 31, 1988, in place of a consoli-
dated statement of changes in financial position.

s 2ideces N G

New York, New York
February 16, 1989



Statements of Consolidated Income
The Columbia Gas System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Year Ended December 31 (in millions) 1988 1987 1986
Operating Revenues

Gas sales $2,749.7 $2,462.2 $3,087.1

Transporfation 287.2 2841 218.7

Other 92.0 88.6 90.3
Total operating revenues 3,128.9 2,8349 3,396.1
Operating Expenses

Products purchased 1,783.0 1,503 1,983.9

Provision for unrecovered gas costs o — — 65.0

Operation 563.6 531.7 457 .4

Maintenance 82.6 82.9 85.7

Depreciation and depletion 212.8 220.0 260.3

Other taxes 170.0 170.7° 179.2
Total operating expenses 2,812.0 2.508.4 3,031.5
Operating Income 316.9 326.5 364.6
Other Income (Deductions)

Interest income and other, net (Note 11) 24.6 324 198

Interest expense and related charges (Note 12) (171.9) (182.6) (199.0)
Total other income (deductions) (147.3) (150.2) (179.2)
Income before Income Taxes and

Extraordinary Charges 169.6 176.3 185.4
Income taxes : 50.6 65.0 86.0
Income before Extraordinary Charges 119.0 111.3 99.4
Extraordinary charges (Note 3) — St 12.6
Net Income 119.0 11.3 86.8
Preferred stock dividends 7.9 10.8 %6
Earnings on Common Stock $ 1114 $ 1005 B 753
Earnings Per Share of Common Stock

{based on average shares outstanding)

Before extraordinary charges $ 2.46 $ 230 . 212
Extraordinary charges — — 30

Earnings on common stock § 2.46 $ 230 $ 182
Dividends Per Share of Common Stock $§ 2.295 $ 318 $ 348
Average Common Shares Outstanding (thousands) 45,190 43,763 41,436

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
The Columbia Gas System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Assets As of December 31 (in millions) 1988 1987
Property, Plant and Equipment
Gas utility and other plant, at original cost $5,133.7 $4979.1
Accumulated depreciation and depletion (2,526.1) (2,445.3)
2,607.6 2,533.8
0il and gas producing properties, full cost method
United States cost center 948.8 961.1
Canadian cost center ($48.6 in 1987 was
not being amortized) (Note 1D) 202.7 2442
Accumulated depletion (495.0) (488.0)
656.5 717.3
Net property, plant and equipment 3,264.1 3.251.1
Investments and Other Assets
Gas supply prepayments (Note 4) 575.0 Thh:h
Accounts receivable-noncurrent 174.5 437
Unconsolidated affiliates (less than 50% owned) 43.3 453
Other 33.3 61.0
Total investments and other assets 826.1 905.5
Current Assets
Cash and temporary cash investments 5.6 3.8
Accounts receivable
Customers (less allowance for doubtful accounts
of $7.4 and $6.7, respectively) 648.3 4720
Other 239.0 162.8
Income tax refunds 5.3 25.6
- Gas inventory 338.3 332.0
Other inventories—at average cost 46.9 435
Prepayments 105.4 105.5
Other 49.2 412
Total current assets 1,438.0 1,186.4
Deferred Charges 112.8 97.9
Total Asseis $ 5,641.0 $ 54409

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these stalements.



Capitalization and Liabilities As of December 31 (in millions) 1988 1987
Common Stock Equity
Common stock, par value $10 per share-outstanding 45,422,790 and
44,711,502 shares, respectively $ 4542 $ 4471
Additional paid in capital 415.9 409.8
Retained earnings 681.6 675.2
Accumulated foreign currency translation adjustment 9 (8.4)
Total common stock equity 1,552.6 1,523.7
Preferred Stock (Note 5) —_ 50.0
Redeemable Preferred Stock (Note 5) _ 60.0
Long-Term Debt (Note 8) 1,338.4 1,438.0
Total capitalization 2,891.0 3.071.7
Current Liabilities
Short-term debt (Note 9) 397.1 3275
Current maturities of long-term debt and preferred stock 52.7 69.6
Accounts and drafts payable 259.3 233.5
Accrued taxes 111.5 100.5
Accrued interest 40.4 39.8
Estimated rate refunds 255.5 2454
Estimated supplier obligations 193.9 85.5
Other 236.6 157.7
Total current liabilities 1,547.0 1,259.5
Other Liabilities and Deferred Credits
Income taxes, noncurrent 959.7 981.5
Estimated supplier obligations—noncurrent 152.7 43.7
Investment tax credits 49.6 515
Other 41.0 33.0
Total other liabilities and deferred credits 1,203.0 1,109.7
Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 2 and 10)
Total Capitalization and Liabilities $5,641.0 $5,440.9
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

The Columbia Gas System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Year Ended December 31 (in millions) 1988
Operations:
(Cash received from customers $2,863.8
Other operating cash receipts 197.4
Cash paid to suppliers (1,481.0)
Interest paid (147.9)
Income taxes paid (96.3)
Other tax payments (177.1)
Cash paid to employees and other employee benefits (385.0)
- Other operating cash payments (320.1)
Net cash from operations 453.8
Investment Activities:
Capital expenditures™ (298.3)
Gas supply prepayments—net 23.1
Sale of Canadian properties 82.8
Net investment activities (192.4)
Financing Activities:
Dividends paid (112.2)
Retirement of revolving credit agreement (300.0)
Retirement of long-term debt and preferred stock (251.6)
Retirement of production loan (75.0)
Issuance of common stock 10.4
Issuance. of long-term debt 100.0
Increase in short-term debt™ 368.8
Net financing activities (259.6)
Increase in cash and temporary cash investments 1.8
Cash and temporary cash investments at beginning of year 3.8
Cash and temporary cash investments at end of year $§ 56
Net Income Reconciliation:
Net income $ 119.0
lters not requiring (providing) cash:
Depreciation and depletion 212.8
Deferred income taxes (54.0)
Estimated rate refunds 145.3
Amortization of prepayments for producer
contract modifications 47.8
Other—net 20.1
Net change in working capital (Note 13) (37.2)
Net Cash From Operations $ 453.8

*Includes amounts transferred from interest paid, cash paid to employees and other employee benefits and other. operating cash payments.

**Includes amount reclassified to long-term debt on the consolidated balance sheet.

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.



Consolidated Statements of Changes in Financial Position
The Calumbia Gas System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Year Ended December 31 (in millions) 1987 1986
Cash From Operations
Income before extraordinary charges $111.3 $ 994
liems not requiring (providing) cash:
Depreciation and depletion 220.0 260.3
Deferred income faxes 359 76.8
Estimated rate refunds 157.4 52.4
Nonrecurring charges—net - (5.9)
Amortization of prepayments for producer
contract modifications 77.0 68.4
Other—net (17.7) (1.7)
Net change in working capital (Note 13) 100.3 . 243
Cash from aperations before extraordinary charge 684.2 574.0
Extraordinary charge — (8.6)
Net cash from operations 684.2 565.4
Capital Investment Activities
Capital expenditures (298.8) (232.3)
Gas supply prepayments—net (226.5) (314.6)
Net capital investment activities (525.3) {546.9)
External Financing Activities
Dividends (149.6) (142.6)
Retirement of long-term debt and preferred stock (156.6) (273.6)
Repayment of production loan (100.0) (75.0)
Issuance of common stock 107.5 80.8
Issuance of long-term debt 200.0 250.0
Issuance of production loan — 100.0
Decrease in short-term debt (65.9) (24.7)
Net external financing activities (164.6) (85.1)
Other—net (5.0) 221
Decrease in Cash and Temporary Cash Investments $ (10.7) $ (44.5)
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Statements of Consolidated Taxes
The Columbia Gas System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Year Ended December 31 (in millions) 1988 1987 1986
Income Taxes
Currently payable;
Federal $ 98.4 $ 232 $ (3.0
State 4.7 6.5 13.8
Investment credits 1.5 (0.6) (3.3)
Total currently payable 104.6 29.1 75
Deferred:
Federal (52.5) 37.0 84.0
State 14 0.1 (5.7)
Foreign — 08 —
Total deferred (51.1) 377 78.3
Deferred investment credits, net (2.9) (1.8) (1.5)
Provision for employee stock ownership plan - e 147
Income taxes included in income before extraordinary charge 50.6 65.0 86.0
‘Federal income taxes, current—extraordinary charge —_ Uiy (7.3)
Total income taxes 50.6 65.0 78.7
Other Taxes
Property 64.9 571 55.2
Gross receipts n.7 80.7 91.6
Payroll 23.0 21.9 216
Other 10.4 11.0 10.8
Total other taxes 170.0 170.7 179.2
Total Tax Expense $220.6 $235.7 $257.9

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.



Year Ended December 31 (in millions) - 1988 1987 1986
Computation of Income Taxes
Total income taxes are different than the
amount which would be computed by
applying the statutory federal income tax
rate to book income before income fax.
The major reasons for this difference
are as follows:
Book income before income taxes (including
extraordinary charges)” $169.6 $176.3 $165.5
Tax expense at statutory federal income tax rate $ 57.7 34.0% $ 705 40.0% $ 76.1 46.0%
Increases (reductions) in taxes resulting from—
State income taxes, net of federal income
tax benefit 3.7 2:2 42 24 42 25
Investment credits not deferred and amortization :
of credits deferred in prior years (1.4) (0.8) (2.5) (1.4) 31 (19
Depreciation expense for accounting purposes
over amounts claimed for income tax purposes 2.5 14 1.9 1.0 20 1.2
Extraordinary charge for which no tax benefit
has been provided — — — - 1.9 11
Effect of change in tax rates on certain deferred
taxes previously provided (7.3) (4.3) (14) (08) e s
Loss carryforward utilized — — (32) (1.8 — —
Other (4.6) (2.7) (4.5) (2.5) (2.4) (1.4)
Total Income Taxes $ 506 29.8% $650  369% $ 787 47.5%
*Includes income (loss) from foreign operalions of $1.5 million, $3.2 miltion, and $(26.0) million, respectively.
Deferred Income Taxes
Deferred income taxes result from timing
differences in recognition of revenues and
expenses for tax and accounting purposes.
The source of these differences and tax
effect of each is as follows:
Acquisition, exploration and development costs $ 43 $(29) $ 65
Sale of Canadian properties (26.9) = L
Depreciation expense 18.5 26.5 19.7
Gas purchased costs 1.5 81.7 1534
Estimated rate refunds (52.1) (32.0) (117.7)
Unbilled utility revenue (15.3) 4.1) (0.9)
Alternative minimum tax 15.0 (15.0) s
Other 3.9 (16.5) 13
Total Deferred Income Taxes $(51.1) $37.7 $ 783
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Statements of Consolidated Common Stock Equity

The Columbia Gas System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Accumulated

G0, Additional S
S Shares Par Paid In Retained Translation
{in millions except for share amounts) Qutstanding (000) Value Capital Earnings Adjustment
Balance at December 31, 1985 40,530 $405.3 $263.3 $769.3 $(15.2)
Net Income 6.8
Dividends:
Common ($3.18 per share) (131.1)
Preferred: :
10.96% Series B (2.4)
10.24% Series C (5.1)
Adjustable rate Series D (Note 5) (4.0)
Common stock issued:
Dividend Reinvestment Plan 707 7.1 20.8
Employee Stock Ownership Plan 40 04 1.2
Public offering 1,250 12.5 38.8
Other 1.0
Balance at December 31, 1986 42,527 425.3 3241 713.5 (14.2)
Net Income 113
Dividends:
Common ($3.18 per share) (138.8)
Preferred:
10.96% Series B (1.9)
10.24% Series C (5.1)
Adjustable rate Series D (Note 5) (3.8)
Common stock issued:
Dividend Reinvestment Plan 358 3.6 12.8
Employee Stock Ownership Plan 31 03 1.3
Public offering 1,750 17.5 70.1
Long-Term Incentive Plan 46 0.4 15
Other 5.8
Balance at December 31, 1987 44712 471 409.8 675.2 (8.4)
Net Income 119.0
Dividends:
Common' ($2.295 per share) (103.4)
Preferred:
10.96% Series B** (1.0)
10.24% Series C** (3.9)
Adjustable rate Serigs D (Note 5)** (3.0)
Common stock issued: :
Lynchburg acquisition 379 38 (1.0)
Dividend Reinvestment Plan 328 33 7.0
Long-Term Incentive Plan 4 0.1
Lynchburg retained earnings 44
Preferred stock call premium (5.7)
Other 93
Balance at December 31, 1988*** 45,423 $454.2 $415.9 $681.6 $ 09

*100 million shares authorized at December 31, 1988, 1987 and 1986-$10 par value and 50 million shares autharized at December 31, 1985.

**Series B, C and D were redeemed on October 3,.1988 and dividends were paid through Oclobgr 2; 1988.
***$557.0 millionof retained earnings is not available for cash dividends and other capital stock distributions at December 31, 1988,
The accompanying Noles to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Columbia Gas System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Principles of Consolidation. The Consolidated Finan-
cial Statements include the accounts of the Corporation
and all subsidiaries. All appropriate intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

On May 23, 1988, the Corporation acquired Lynchburg
Gas Company through an exchange of common stock.
This acquisition was accounted for as a pooling of
interests in the 1988 consolidated financial statements.
Prior period financial statements have not been restated
as the effect is immaterial.

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 1987
and 1986 financial statements to conform to the 1988
presentation.

B. Basis of Accounting for Rate Regulated Subsidi-
aries. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
71 (SFAS No. 71) provides that rate regulated public
utilities account for and report assets and liabilities
consistent with the economic effect of the way in which
regulators establish rates, if the rates established are
designed to recover the costs of providing the regulated
service, and if the competitive environment makes it
reasonable to assume that such rates can be charged
and collected. The Corporation’s interstate transmission
companies do not meet these criteria, and con-
sequently, do not apply the provisions of SFAS No. 71.
The Corporation’s gas distribution subsidiaries continue
to meet the criteria, and accordingly, follow the account-
ing and reporting requirements of SFAS No. 71.

C. Gas Utility and Other Plant and Related Depreciation.
Property, plant and equipment (principally utility plant)

is stated at original cost. The cost of gas utility and other
plant of the distribution companies includes an allow-
ance for funds used during construction (AFUDC). Prop-
erty, plant and equipment of other subsidiaries includes
interest during construction (IDC). The before tax rates
for AFUDC and IDC were as follows:

Year Ended December 31 (%) 1988 1987 1986
AFUDC 9.6 9. 3 8.6
lDC 9.7 9 2 94

Improvements and replacements of retirement units are
capitalized at cost. When units of property are retired,
the accumulated provision for depreciation is charged
with the cost of the units and the cost of removal, net of
salvage. Maintenance, repairs and minor replacements
of property are charged to expense.

The Corporation’s subsidiaries provide for depreciation
on a composite straight line basis. The annual deprecia-
tion rates were as follows:

Year Ended December 31 (%) 1988 1987 1986
Transmission. property 3.0 31 36
Distribution property 3.4 3 5 3.8

D. Oil and Gas Producing Properties. The Corporation’s
subsidiaries engaged in exploring for and developing oil
and gas reserves follow the full cost method of account-
ing. Under this method of accounting, all productive and
nonproductive costs directly identified with acquisition,
exploration and development activities are capitalized

in country-wide cost centers. If costs exceed the sum

of the estimated present value of the cost centers net
future oil and gas revenues and the lower of cost or
estimated value of unproved properties, an amount
equivalent to the excess is charged to current depletion
expense. Gains or losses on the sale or other disposi-
tion of oil and gas properties are normally recorded

as adjustments to capitalized costs.

Depletion related to costs capnalrzed in the United
States cost center is based upon the ratio of current
year revenues to expected revenues, utilizing current
prices, over the life of production. Depletion related to
costs capitalized in the Canadian cost center is based
upon the ratio of volumes produced to total reserves.

Capitalized costs of $48.6 million for certain unevalu-
ated Canadian properties were excluded from amortiza-
tion in 1987 pending determination of proved reserves
and/or value attributable to the properties. These prop-
erties were sold during 1988, resulting in a reduction in
the costs being amortized in the Canadian cost center
equal to the excess of the proceeds over the carrying
value of the properties.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Columbia Gas System, inc. and Subsidiaries

E. Gas Inventory. Current inventory is carried at cost on
a last-in, first-out (LIFO) basis. Liquidation of LIFO layers
related to gas delivered to market does not affect income
since the effect is passed through to customers as part
of the Purchased Gas Adjustment (PGA) tariff. The esti-
mated replacement cost of gas inventory in excess of
carrying amounts was approximately $210 million at
December 31, 1988.

F. Income Taxes and Investment Tax Credits. The
Corporation's subsidiaries record income taxes to
recognize full interperiod tax allocation which arise from
timing differences in the recognition of revenues and
expenses for income tax and accounting purposes,
except when regulatory commissions do not recognize
interperiod tax allocation for rate purposes. The
cumulative amount of income tax timing differences for
which deferred income taxes have not been provided
was approximately $139 million at December 31, 1988,
principally related to tax deductions for accelerated
depreciation of the Corporation’s gas distribution
subsidiaries.

Most investment tax credits were eliminated by the Tax
Reform Act of 1986. Prior to 1986, investment tax credits
were recorded in income currently, except for credits of
the gas distribution subsidiaries, which have been
deferred and are being amortized over the life of the
related properties to conform with regulatory policy.

Additional information related to the components of tax
expense is contained in the Statements of Consolidated
Taxes. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finan-
cial Condition and Results of Operations provides
information concerning the Financial Accounting Stan-
dards Board's pronouncements which require the
Corporation to adopt a new method of accounting for
income taxes no later than January 1, 1990.

G. Estimated Rate Refunds. Certain rate regulated
subsidiaries collect revenues subject to refund pending
final determination in rate proceedings. In connection
with such revenues, estimated rate refund liabilities are

recorded which reflect management's current judgment
of the ultimate outcome of the proceedings. No provi-
sions are made when, in the opinion of management,
the facts and circumstances preclude a reasonable
estimate of the outcome.

H. Deferred Gas Purchased Costs. The Corporation’s
gas distribution subsidiaries defer differences between
gas purchased costs and the recovery of such costs in
revenues, and adjust future billings for such deferrals
on a basis consistent with applicable tariff provisions.

I. Revenue Recognition. The Corporation’s rate regulated
subsidiaries bill customers on a monthly cycle billing
basis. Revenues are recorded on the accrual basis
including an estimate for gas delivered but unbilled at
the end of each accounting period. Columbia Gas
Transmission Corporation (Columbia Transmission) also
records revenues to reflect future billings to recover or
refund the difference between current gas costs and
amounts billed through its PGA tariff.

J. Statement of Cash Flows. In November 1987, the
Financial Accounting Standards Board issued State-
ment No. 95, “Statement of Cash Flows:' As permitted
by the Statement, the Corporation has presented a
Statement of Cash Flows for 1988 and Statements of
Changes in Financial Position for 1987 and 1986. The
Corporation considers all highly liquid debt instruments
purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Columbia Gas System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

2. REGULATORY MATTERS

A. Columbia Transmission’s Rate Proceedings. Colum-
bia Transmission is involved in a number of proceedings
before the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
(FERC) related to its ability to recover certain gas
purchased and other costs. The major issues include:
(1) a general rate filing under which revenues have been
collected subject to refund since April 1, 1987; (2)
several protested PGA filings since April 1, 1987; and
(3) the application of a price cap which would limit the
recovery of certain gas purchased costs incurred since
April 1, 1987, covering previously defined problem
contracts with producers.

On February 16, 1989, a FERC administrative law judge
(ALJ) issued an initial decision on the protested PGA
filings which seems to call into question Columbia
Transmission’s right to recover the cost of up to 45 billion
cubic feet of purchased gas. The ALJ said that a 1985
rate settlement between Columbia Transmission and its
wholesale customers bars the recovery of the cost of
over 18 billion cubic feet of gas purchased and injected
into storage in 1986 and withdrawn in 1987 for sale to
those customers. The decision did not explicitly address
an additional 27 billion cubic feet of gas which was also
purchased and stored in 1986, but which has not yet
been withdrawn. The gas in question is valued at
approximately $3.25 an Mcf.

Columbia Transmission considers this initial decision
to be inconsistent with the intent of the 1985 settlement
and takes strong exception to its findings. After the
submission of legal briefs, this matter will go to the
FERC for its consideration. Columbia Transmission
plans to strongly oppose the findings which would
require the sale of gas injected into storage in 1986

to its wholesale customers at zero cost.

Management makes periodic reviews of the level of rate
refund reserves recorded and adjusts the reserves as
may be appropriate. These reviews take into considera-
tion the progress of the proceedings, as well as court
rulings, previously issued FERC orders and other fac-
tors. Management believes the rate refund reserves are
adequate in the aggregate to cover the ultimate resolu-
tion of these matters. However, the proceedings are in
various stages and their outcomes cannot be predicted
with a high degree of accuracy. Estimates of exposure
are inherently imprecise because of the varied stages of
each proceeding, their interrelationships and the novel
legal and regulatory issues involved; nevertheless,
management believes that the maximum additional
exposure in excess of amounts already provided
should not exceed $60 million.

Columbia Transmission is engaged in broad discus-
sions with its customers, the FERC staff and other
parties looking toward settlement of these issues.
However, due to the complexity of the issues, the
magnitude of dollars and the divergent interests

involved, the outcome of these discussions cannot
be predicted at this time.

B. Direct Billings of Take-or-Pay Payments and Contract
Reformation Costs. Most of Columbia Transmission’s
pipeline suppliers have filed to recover their take-or-pay
and contract reformation costs under the current guide-
lines of Order No. 500 issued by the FERC in August 1987,
Based on estimates contained in pipeline supplier filings
and other available information, Columbia Transmission’s
noncommaodity direct billings from its pipeline suppliers
could approximate $375 million, including interest.

In July 1988, the FERC issued an order allowing Colum-
bia Transmission to track such payments in its rates to
customers. The order provided that the recovery of
these costs was subject to refund pending the outcome
of a hearing established to investigate the prudence of
Columbia Transmission’s purchasing practices. In Octo-
ber 1988, the FERC ruled a 1985 customer settlement
agreement barred an investigation of Columbia Trans-
mission's prudence in this matter and ordered the hear-
ing be terminated. This ruling has been appealed to the
courts by certain customers. In management’s opinion,
the FERC ruling will be upheld.

Columbia Transmission’s billings of these costs to its
affiliated distribution companies could approximate
$160 million. Most of the state regulatory commissions
which have jurisdiction over the Corporation’s distribu-
tion subsidiaries have undertaken studies to determine
the appropriate treatment of these billings from pipeline
suppliers and three commissions are allowing full
recovery. It is management’s opinion that the System's
distribution subsidiaries will ultimately be able to pass
on all such billings from Columbia Transmission to
their customers.

C. Direct Billings by Pipeline Supplier. The FERC issued
an order on January 13, 1989, authorizing a pipeline
supplier to retroactively collect higher prices for certain
gas it produced and sold between 1979 and 1983. The
order permits the pipeline supplier to direct bill its cus-
tomers, including Columbia Transmission, for the price
increase based on their levels of purchase during the
period. The acceptance of this direct billing approach
is an abrupt reversal of the FERC's long-standing
position that the pipeline supplier should recover the
higher prices through a surcharge added to its com-
modity sales rate. Based upon a February 13, 1989,
filing, it is currently estimated that this could amount to
approximately $60 million, including interest. Columbia
Transmission's prior estimate was $25 million.

In management's opinion, the FERC order contains a
number of factual and legal flaws and, consequently,
Columbia Transmission intends to request rehearing- of
the decision of the FERC, and if necessary, appeal to
the courts. Management believes that Columbia Trans-
mission has a reasonable chance of prevailing.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Columbia Gas System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

3. EXTRAORDINARY CHARGES

In the third quarter of 1986, the Corporation recorded
an additional loss of $4.0 million related to the sale of
an unprofitable gas distribution subsidiary. The loss
resulted from the settlement of various lawsuits associ-
ated with the sale.

In the fourth quarter of 1986, the Corporation redeemed
$135.5 million of debentures at a premium of $15.9
million ($8.6 million net of income tax benefits).

4. GAS SUPPLY PREPAYMENTS

The following prepayments represent payments to
producers and pipeline suppliers in connection with
gas supply:

At December 31 (8 in millions) 1988 1987
Prepayments for producer contract

modifications 450.9 592.2
Other gas supply prepayments 124.1 163.3

Total 575.0

755.5

A. Prepayments for Producer Contract Modifications.
Payments have been made to certain producers in
return for contract modifications related to future pur-
chases of gas. These payments are being amortized
on a volumetric basis over a ten-year period ending
June 30, 1995, the primary period of benefit.

B. Other Gas Supply Prepayments. Prepayments are
based upon the take-or-pay provisions of the various
producer and pipeline supplier contracts. They are
recoupable through future deliveries of gas or, in
some cases, cash payments.

5. PREFERRED STOCK

On October 3, 1988, the Corporation redeemed all out-
standing shares of its three preferred stock issues and
at December 31, 1988 had authorized, but unissued,
10,000,000 shares, par value $50.00 per share.

As of December 31, 1987, the Corporation had author-
ized 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value
$50.00 per share, and had outstanding 300,000 shares
of 10.96% redeemable Series B Preferred Stock;
1,000,000 shares of 10.24% redeemable Series C Pre-
ferred Stock and 1,000,000 shares of Adjustable Rate
Series D Preferred Stock which was redeemable only
at the option of the Corporation. The adjustable divi-

dend rate was adjusted quarterly in accordance with a
formula based on U.S. Treasury securities. The annual
rates used for each quarterly period were as follows:

Quarter Ended (%) 1988 1987 1986

November 8.35 7.95 7.50

August S Ay 820 Tk 1.70 7.50
'—;VI_ay_ SO 2 7.50 7.50 855_ :
hFebruarym S 8.00 7—5[} —‘m_

6. ACCOUNTING FOR PENSION COSTS

AND OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Corporation has trusteed, noncontributory pension
plans which, with minor exceptions, cover all regular
employees, 21 years of age and over. The plans pro-
vide defined benefits based on the largest three-year
average annual compensation in the final five years

of service, and years of accredited service. It is the
Corporation’s funding policy to contribute annually to
the plans based on a percentage of expected employees
earnings, estimated at the beginning of the year and
subject to the statutory minimum and maximum limits.

The following table provides 1988-1986 pension cost com-
ponents for the plans along with additional relevant data:

Pension’Costs ($ in millions) 1988 1987 1986
Service cost 12.5 144 14.4
Interest cost 47.9 455 46.7
Return on assets (55.0) (54.7) (49.2)
QOther, net 1.3 1.2 (0.3)
Net pension expense 6.7 6.4 11.6
Annual contribution 5.8 7.2 179
Assumed asset earnings rate 9% 9% 9%

Actual return on plan assets for 1988, 1987 and 1986
was $72.9 million, $39.4 million and $92.2 million,
respectively. The difference between the assumed return
on assets used in the calculation of net periodic pension
expense and the actual return on assets, among other
things, is included in the following table in unrecognized
net gain.
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Effective January 1, 1989, certain plan provisions were
amended. The cost of these changes, which enhance
retirement benefits, has been recognized as of
December 31, 1988. These plan revisions have a
significant impact on prior service cost as disclosed
in the following table.

Pension plan assets consist principally of common stock
equities, fixed income securities and real estate invest-
ments. The following table reconciles plan assets and
liabilities to the funded status of the plans:

Plan Assets and Obligations

at December 31 (8 in millions) 1988 1987
Plan‘assets at fair value 664.5 628.3
Actuarial present value of benefit obligations:

Vested benefits 523.1 504.2

Nonvested benefits 38.7 26.7
Accumulated benefit obligation 561.8 5309
Effect of projected future salary increases 108.4 87.7
Total projected benefit obligation 670.2 618.6
Plan assets in excess of (less than)

projected benefit obligation (5.7) 9.7
Less unrecognized net gain 56.5 22.6
Plus unrecognized prior service cost 52.4 26
Plus unrecognized transition obligation 16.2 174
Prepaid pension cost 6.4 71
Discount rate assumption 8.5% 8.0%
Compensation growth rate 6.5% 6.5%

In addition to providing pension benefits, the Corpora-
tion's subsidiaries provide other post-retirement benefits
including medical care and life insurance which cover
substantially all active employees upon their retirement.
Medical care benefits for retirees are expensed as paid.
Life insurance benefit costs are expensed and funded
based on normal cost and the amortization of an
accrued unfunded actuarial liability. The expense recog-
nized for these post-retirement benefits was $6.7 million
in 1988 and $6.1 million in both 1987 and 1986.

7. LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

The Corporation has a Long-Term Incentive Plan (Plan)
which provides for the granting of incentive stock
options, nongualified stock options, stock appreciation
rights and contingent stock awards. A total of 1,500,000
shares of the Corporation's authorized common stock
was initially reserved for issuance under the Plan’s
provisions. There were 722,930 shares remaining avail-
able for awards at December 31, 1988.

Stock options are granted at an exercise price equal
to the fair market value on the date of the grant. The
outstanding grants provide that 50% of the options are
exercisable beginning one year after the date of grant
and 50% beginning two years from the date of grant.
Options expire ten years from the date of grant.

Stock appreciation rights, which are granted in connec-
tion with nonqualified stock options, entitle the holders
to receive stock, cash or a combination thereof equal

to the excess market value over the grant price.

Transactions for 1986-1988 are as follows:

Qption Shares

Without Stock ~~ With Stock Option
Appreciation Appreciation Price
Rights Rights Range
Outstanding 12/31/85 158,950 6,100 - $38.30-$38.31
1986
Granted 141,390 25,380 $42.99
Exercised — - -
Cancelled (4,950) —  $38.30-$38.31
Qutstanding 12/31/86 295,390 31,480  $38.30-$42.99
1967
Granted 177,680 26,910 $37.74
Exercised (30,245) —  $38.30-$42.99
Cancelled (13,325) —  $38.30-$42.99
~ Converted (2,480 2,480 $42.99
Qutstanding 12/31/87 427,020 60,870  $37.74-342.99
1988
Granted 210,080 30,870 $34.30
Exercised — — —
Cancelled (9,435)  (9,790) $37.74-$42.99
Converied (11,980) 11,980 $37.74-$42.99
Outstanding 12/31/88 615,685 93,930 $34.30-$42.99
Exercisable 12/31/88 318,765 50,750 $37.74-842.99

In addition fo the options, contingent stock awards have
been granted to certain key executives. The outstanding
awards granted in 1988, 1987 and 1986 are 2,500, 8,900
and 6,000 shares, respectively. In 1988 and 1987, 4,000
and 15,810 shares of common stock, respectively, were
issued for vested awards. Subject to meeting the award
contingencies, stock will be issued as follows: 3,000
shares in 1989 and 14,400 shares in 1990.
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8. LONG-TERM DEBT ®0n Oclober 5, 1988, the Gorporation cancelled a $300 million commitment available to the
E b Corporaion on a revolving basis. All borrowings under this agreement were subordinate [o the
The long-term C_’Ebt (GXQIUSIVG Qf _cu_rrent maturities) Corporation’s debentures. The notes bare interest accarding lo various rale options (based on the
of the Corporation and its subsidiaries is as follows: prime rate, bank certificates of deposit, or the London InterBank Offered Rate) selected by the
Corporation for varying time periods.
At December 31 ($ in millions) 1988 1987

®)At December 31, 1988, $300 million of sharl-term debt was reclassified on the accompanying
consolidated balance shest to long-term debt (see Note 9) based upon managements intent

The Columbia Gas System, Inc. and ability to maintain that amount outstanding for mare than 12 months.

Debentures:
4%% Series due May 1989 — 15.0 (©10n Seplember 27, 1388, the Corporation cancelled an amended Limiled Recourse Loan Agreement,
454% Sories cue Octoer 198 - e T O S e
9% Series due November 1989 —_ 7.5 average unused commitment through ‘Seplember 27, 1988. The notes bore interest according to
454% Series due May 1990 11.4 13.4 various rate options (based on the prime rate, bank cerlificates of deposit, the London InterBank
474% Series due October 1990 12.0 13.4 Offered Rale, or Fixed Rale Oplions) selected by the company for various time periods.
5 :
gg;ﬁ gg:gz gﬁ: gggg:: 123; 13; }g? The aggregate maturittg§ of Iong—term debt (exclugling
7% Series due May 1993 19:9 22'0 short-term debt reclassified) for the five years ending
0%  Series due August 1993 150.0 1500 December 31,1993, are as follows:
7% Series due October 1993 16.1 17.6 ($ in millions)
9%  Series due October 1994 21.8 238
8%4% Series due April 1995 18.5 203 1989 527
9%% Series due October 1995 23.7 25.5 1990 625
10%% Series due November 1995 23.3 260
8%% Series due March 1996 3.7 40.7 1991 515
914% Series due May 1996 28.0 326 1090 e
8%4% Series due September 1996 30.2 327 :
7% Series due March 1997 27.3 28.2 1993245 2195
7%% Series due June 1997 32.7 348
1??;322 22::2: g:z Jolggbg%g? g;g ggg The Corporation from time to time satisfies sinking fund
2 . . H
794% Series due May 1998 28.4 307 requirements through open market purchases.
10%% Series due May 1999 42.5 475
9%% Series due June 1999 24.5 26.0
11%4% Series due October 1999 — 15.6
12%4% Series due August 2000 — 156
10%4% Series due August 2011 100.0 100.0
10%% Series due June 2012 200.0 200.0
10%0% Series due November 2013 100.0 e
: 1,028.1 1,062.2
Unamortized debt discount, less premium (6.4) (5.7)
1,021.7 1,056.5
Revolving credit agreement(@) — 2813
Short-term debt reclassified(®) 300.0 =
Subsidiary debt:
Production loan(e) — 750
Other 111 92
Capitalized lease obligations 5.6 16.0

Total long-term debt 1,338.4 1,438.0
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9. SHORT-TERM DEBT

The short-term financing requirements of the Corpora-
tion and its subsidiaries are met through the sale of
commercial paper and/or through borrowings under

bank lines of credit. The commercial paper is sold

through dealers in maturities normally ranging from

one day to six months. The bank loans are made under
either: a $500 million revolving short-term committed line
of credit; a $750 million revolving five-year subordinated
line of credit; or through notes sold directly to commer-
cial banks. Loans under these agreements bear interest
according to various rate options (based on prime, bank
certificates of deposit or the London InterBank Offered
Rate) to be selected by the Corporation for various time
periods. Banks participating in the credit lines are paid

fees equal to ¥4% per annum and 3% per annum,
q

respectively, on the unused portions of each facility.
Outstanding commercial paper and notes are sup-

ported by unused bank lines of credit.

In 1988, the Corporation also entered into three interest
rate swap agreements (each with a commitment of three
years) based on total notional amounts of $300 million.
These agreements, which have an average fixed rate of
8.74%, reduce the Corporation's exposure to interest
rate fluctuations. In addition to facilities maintained

by the Corporation, one subsidiary company had a

$3 million short-term line of credit at year end 1988.

It is anticipated this line of credit will be terminated
during 1989.

It is expected that at least $300 million of the cur
rently outstanding variable rate debt will continue to
be outstanding for at least twelve months and, con-
sequently, such amount has been reclassified as
long-term debt on the December 31, 1988 balance
sheet (see Note 8).

Year Ended December 31 ($ in millions) 1988 1987 1986
Maximum outstanding:

Commercial paper 439.7 4014 4483

Bank loans 481.5 L 418.0
Daily average outstanding:

Commercial paper 230.4 106.9 118.5

Bank loans 94.3 — 46.4
Interest rates:

Commercial paper 6.6%-9.9% 5.9%-8.7% 5.7%-8.5%

Bank loans 7.7%-10.5% e 8.9%-9.4%
Weighted daily average rate:

Commercial paper 8.1% 6.8% 6.4%

Bank loans 9.1% — 9.0%
Weighted average rate at year end:

Commercial paper 9.2% 8.1% 6.2%

Bank loans 9.8% . el
Weighted average maturity at year end (days):

Commercial paper 31.2 218 30.0

Bank loans 27.8 el e
Credit lines at year end 1,253.0 925.0 525.0
Unused credit lines at year end 555.9 197.5 131.6
Qutstanding at December 31:

Commercial paper 385.0 327.5 3934

Bank loans 3121 et =
Total 697.1 327.5 393.4
Amount reclassified o long-term debt (Note 8) (@ 300.0 S S
Short-term debt 397.1 327.5 393.4

‘)Statistics calculated in this lable include all commercial paper and bank loans and do not reflect the impact of the reclassification
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10. OTHER COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

A. Capital Expenditures. Capital expenditures for 1989
are estimated at $480 million. Of this amount, $215
million is for transmission operations, $132 million for
distribution operations, $121 million for oil and gas
operations and $12 million for other operations.

B. Producer Contract Disputes. Columbia Transmission
began a program in 1985 to amend its high-cost gas
purchase contracts with producers in the Southwest and
Rocky Mountain areas. In connection with such contract
renegotiations, Columbia Transmission agreed to indem-
nify producers against potential liabilities that may be
incurred by them as a result of such contract modifica-
tions. Since 1986, several lawsuits have been filed by
royalty owners challenging certain provisions of the
contract modifications. In management’s opinion, these
indemnifications will not result in liabilities that will have
material adverse effects on the consolidated financial
position of the Corporation and its subsidiaries.

Certain producers which were not involved in the

1985 contract renegotiations have filed claims against
Columbia Transmission related to take-or-pay, price
and other provisions of gas purchase contracts.
Columbia Transmission has settled some of these
contractual disputes and settlement negotiations with
certain other producers are in progress. Among the
unsettled claims are a number of suits, including one
class action suit, which have been filed on behalf of
certain Appalachian gas producers challenging Colum-
bia Transmission’s right to invoke '‘cost recovery” rights
of the contracts and the reduced price then paid to the
producers. Management is of the opinion that it is
probable it will prevail in these proceedings and,
accordingly, their resolution should not have a material
adverse effect on the Corporation’s financial position or
results of operations.

C. Other Legal Proceedings. The Corporation and its
subsidiaries have been named as defendants in various
other legal proceedings arising from the conduct of their
business operations. In the opinion of management, the
ultimate disposition of the currently asserted claims will
not have a material impact on the Corporation’s consoli-
dated financial position or results of operations.

D. Assets Under Lien and Other Guarantees. Sub-
stantially all of Columbia Transmission's properties have
been pledged to the Corporation as security for debt
owed by Columbia Transmission to the Corporation; and
certain customers have made prepayments for gas
service which are secured by a pledge of an interest in
Columbia Transmission’s gas inventory.

E. Cove Point LNG Terminal. Deliveries of liquefied
natural gas to Columbia LNG Corporation’s (Columbia
LNG) Cove Point terminal ceased in April 1980 due to
failure of the Algerian government to approve a price
agreement reached in 1979 between the Algerian
national company producing the liguefied natural gas
and the company from whom Columbia LNG was
purchasing the gas.

On November 10, 1988, the Corporation agreed to sell
50 percent of its stock in Columbia LNG to Shell Oil
Company for approximately $110 million. The sale is
expected to take place in steps over the next two years,
if certain significant conditions are met. The first
deliveries of liquefied natural gas to the Cove Point
terminal could occur as early as mid-1991.

F. Operating Leases. Payments made in connection
with operating leases are charged to operation and
maintenance expense as incurred. Such amounts
were $41.9 million in 1988, $35.2 million in 1987,
and $27.9 million in 1986.

Future minimum rental payments required under operat-
ing leases that have initial or remaining noncanceliable
lease terms in excess of one year are:

($ in millions)

1989 72
1990 6.7

1991 : 52
109 e

1993 50

After 1993 665
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11. INTEREST INCOME AND OTHER, NET

Year Ended December 31 ($ in millions) - 1988 1987 1986
Interest income 25.7 15.6 -15.2
Gain on sale of coal interests e 138 i
Income (loss) from equity investments (4.3) 1.8 29
Miscellaneous 3.2 19 17
Total 24.6 324 19.8

12. INTEREST EXPENSE AND RELATED CHARGES
Year Ended December 31 ($ in milfions) 1988 1987 1986
interest on debt ; 148.8 140.3 149.3
Amortization of debt discount on contract modification obligations —_ 225 442 -
Interest on rate refunds 14.7 - Ed 1.2
Other interest charges 12.7 149 85
Allowance for borrowed funds used and interest during construction (4.3) (4.8) - (42)
Total 171.9 1826 199.0

13. CHANGES IN COMPONENTS OF WORKING CAPITAL

(excludes cash and temporary cash investments, short-term debt and current malurities of long-tarm debt and preferred stock)
Year Ended December 31 ($ in millions) 1988 1987 1986
Accounts receivable, net (252.5) 1.9 14
Income tax refunds 20.3 86.8 16.7
Gas inventory (6.3) 46.1 94.1)
Accounts and drafts payable 25.8 (42.9) (73.2)
Accrued taxes 11.0 3.0 14,2
Estimaled rate refunds 10.1 157.4 52.4
Estimated supplier obligations 108.4 (61.6) (97.7)
Deferred income taxes _ (109.6) (55.1)
Miscellaneous 68.2 {1 516
Change in working capital (15.0) 928 (183.8)
Reclassifications (22.2) 1.5 208.1
Net change in working capital (37.2) 100.3 243
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14. BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION

The following tables provide information concerning

the Corporation’s major business segments, Revenues
include intersegment sales to affiliated subsidiaries,
which are eliminated when consolidated. Affiliated sales
are recognized on the basis of prevailing market or
regulated prices. Operating income is derived from
revenues and expenses directly associated with each
segment. Identifiable assets include only those attrib-
utable to the operations of each segment.

Earnings reflect the allocation of certain corporate
income and expenses. The basis for allocation or assign-
ment to a specific segment is dependent on the nature

of the item. Income or loss attributable to equity invest-
ments is assigned to specific segments. Corporate
income, interest expense and preferred stock dividends
are allocated in proportion to capital employed by identifia-
ble segments. The provision for income taxes is allocated
based upon each segment's pre-tax income adjusted for
assignable statutory tax rate differences.

Identifiable assets related to other operations include the
net assets of coal mining operations discontinued in 1984.
Such amounts were $11.9 million in 1988, $12.4 million in
1987 and $13.5 million in 1986.

(8 in millions) 1988 1987 1986
Revenues

Transmission ~Unaffiliated 1,080.3 1,083.2 1,464.6
—Intersegment 777.8 896.9 1,119.1

—Revenue adjustments™ 183.7 (25.9) (92.4)
Total 2,041.8 1,954.2 2.491.3
Distribution —Unaffiliated 1,678.8 1,618.8 1,899.7
—Intersegment A 5 76

—Revenue adjustments* 109.9 1.0 (46.2)
Total 1,788.8 1,620.1 1,861.1
0il and gas —Unaffiliated 130.4 112.5 65.0
—Intersegment 31.3 51.2 106.8
Total 161.7 163.7 171.8
Other —Unaffiliated 49.2 53.0 59.2
—Intersegment 63.3 55.6 58.7
Total 112.5 108.6 1179

Adjusiments ~Unaffiliated e ek S
and eliminations —Intersegment (872.5) (1,004.0) (1,292.2)
—Revenue adjustments” (103.4) 7. 46.2

Total (975.9) (1,011.7) (1.246.0)
Consolidated 3,128.9 28349 33061

*Revenue adjustments relate fo the passthrough of upstream pipeline take-or-pay and ather unbilled gas costs and the effect of recorded estimated rate refunds.
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($ in millions)

1988 1987 1986
Operating Income (Loss)
Transmission 148.6 179.1 167.6
Distribution 140.7 108.6 184.7
0il and gas 35.2 412 14.8
Other 4.6 5P, 5.2
Corporate (12.2) (7.6) (7.7
Consolidated 316.9 326.5 364.6
Earnings (Loss) from Continuing Operations Before Extraordinary Charges
Transmission 38.1 39.2 19.4
Distribution 63.1 39.3 75.1
0il and gas 8.7 90 {6.5)
QOther 1.2 13.0 (1)
Consolidated 1111 100.5 87.9
Depreciation & Depletion
Transmission 90.6 102.2 114.6
Distribution 48.5 471 459
0il and gas 70.7 66.1 946
Other 3.0 4.6 52
Consolidated 212.8 2200 260.3
Identifiable Assets
Transmission 3,251.3 31270 3,362.1
Distribution 1,576.9 1,488.4 14720
0il and gas 709.1 779.9 746.8
Other 98.2 101.4 100.0
Adjustments and eliminations (113.8) (125.8) (168.2)
Corporate and unallocated 119.3 70.0 775
Consolidated 5,641.0 5,440.9 5,590.2
Capital Expenditures
Transmission 102.6 100.9 60.7
Distribution 110.4 105.8 101.0
0il and gas 711 81.5 66.8
Other 23.8 10.6 38
Consolidated 307.9 298.8 2323
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15. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

Comparison of results of operations among quarters
during the year may be misleading in obtaining an
understanding of the trend of the Systems business
operations, since total throughput is predominantly
influenced by seasonal weather patterns which, in

Quarter Ended

($ in millions except per share data) Operaling Revenues

turn, affect earnings and related components of oper-
ating revenues and expenses. The total of quarterly
amounts may not equal annual earnings per share
due to increasing average shares outstanding.

Eamnings
(Loss) on
Common Stock

Income (Loss)
from Operations
Before Income Taxes

Earnings
(Loss) Per Share

1988

December 31 890.5 78.0 53.0 1.17

September 30 453.7 (30.7) (21.0) (0.46)
June 30(1) 463.6 (3.9) (2.8) (0.06)
March 31 1,321.1 126.2 81.9 1.83
1987

December 31 922.6 54.4 336 0.75

September 30(2) 361.7 (1.1) (6.4) (0.14)
June 30 ' 4546 44 0.1 AE
March 31@3) 1,096.0 118.6 732 1.7

Mincludes a decrease in earnings of $4.5 million to record a wrile-down of the carrying value of Canadian oil and gas properties.

@lncludes an increase in earnings of $9.1 million related to the sale of certain coal inlerests.

(lincludes a decrease in earnings of $19.2 million as a result of regulatory rulings related-to the ability of Columbla Transmission to recover cerfain gas purcnase contract refommatmn costs retroactive

fo April 1, 1986, of which $12.1 milfion is-applicable to 1986.

16. OIL AND GAS PRODUCING ACTIVITIES (UNAUDITED)

Introduction. Reserve information contained in the follow-
ing tables for the U.S, properties are management's
estimates which are reviewed by the independent
consulting firm of Ryder Scott Company Petroleum
Engineers. Reserve information for the Canadian proper-
ties was supplied by John R. Lacey International Ltd.

U.S. reserves are reported as net working interest, while
Canadian reserves are gross working interest reserves,
since royalties related to Canadian leases generally
provide for payment on a basis other than a percent of
production. Gross revenues are reported after deduction
of royalty interest payments.

CAPITALIZED COSTS United Stales Canada Total
($ in millions) 1988 1987 1986 1988 1987 1986 1988 1967 1986
Capitalized Costs at Year End
Praved properties 887.1 9041 916.1 175.0 169.0 148.3 1,062.1 1,073.1 1,064.4
Unproved properties(@ 61.7 57.0 48.3 21.7 75.2 64.2 89.4 1322 1125
Total capitalized costs 948.8 961.1 964.4 202.7 2442 212.5 1,151.5 1 ,205.3 1,176.9
Accumulated depletion (434.3) (441.0) (445.2) (60.7) (47.0) (41.2) (495.0) (488.0) (486.4)
Net capitalized costs 514.5 520.1 5192 142.0 197.2 171.3 656.5 7173 690 5
Costs Capitalized During Year
Acquisition 5.2 195 93 5.3 58 3.2 10.5 25.3 12.5
Exploration 21.4 18.0 24.0 9.4 8.7 7.2 30.8 267 31.2
Development 24.7 249 161 4.5 41 5.5 29.2 29.0 216
Costs capitalized 51.3 62.4 494 19.2 18.6 15.9 70.5 81.0 65.3

(=)Represents expendilures associated with properties on which evaluations have not been completed.
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HISTORICAL RESULTS OF OPERATIONS United States Canada Total
($ in millions) 1988 1987 1986 1988 1987 1986 1988 1987 1986
Gross revenues ;
Unafiiliated , 119.0 101.2 56.3 11.2 11.4 89 130.2 112.6 65.2
Affiliated 30.9 507 106.5 —_ o — 30.9 50.7 106.5
Production costs 28.7 340 322 3.8 Pl RS il 32.5 36.6 35.0
Depletion 58.5 60.9 63.7 11.80 4 8ta) 30.2@ 70.3 65.7 939
Income tax expense 21.3 22.8 30.6 (1.5) 16 {11.1) 19.8 24.4 19.5
Results of operations 41.4 342 36.3 (2.9) 24 (13.0) 38.5 36.6 23.3

Results-of operations for producing aclivilies exclude administralive and general costs, cofparate overhead and interest expense. Income 1ax éxpense is expressed al stalutory rates less investment tax credits.
@ncludes write-down of the carrying value of $6.9 million for 1988, $0.8 million for 1987 and $26.6 million for 1986.

OTHER OIL AND GAS PRODUCTION DATA United Stafes Canada

1988 1987 1986 1988 1987 . ~1986

Average sales price per Mcf of gas ($) 1.74 1.68 2.11 1515 1.23 1.41
Average sales price per barrel of oil and other liquids (3) 13.66 15.99 14.37 12.10 14.66 14.30
Production (lifting) cost per dollar of gross revenue ($) 0.19 0.22 0.20 0.34 0.23 0.32
Depletion rate per dollar of gross revenue (§) 0.39 0.40 0.39 R — B4y
Depletion rate per equivalent Mcf ($) — — — 0.74 0:72 0.74

- RESERVE QUANTITY INFORMATION United States Canadal@

0il and Other 3 0il and Other

Gas Liquids Gas Liquids

Proved Reserves (Bef) (000 Bbls) (Beh) (000 Bbls)
Reserves as of December 31, 1985 7514 8,378 154.4 6,004
Revisions of previous estimate 36.3 (97) (9.8) (671)
Extensions, discoveries and other additions 20.7 482 iy 791
Production (66.1) {1,667) (2.0) (503)
Purchase/(sale) of minerals-in-place - — — (18)
Reserves as of December 31, 1986 742.3 7,096 142.6 5,603
Revisions of previous estimate 294 761 40 (53)
Extensions, discoveries and other additions 27.0 1,445 37 1,371
Production (73.8) (1,597) (2.0) (602)
Purchase/(sale) of minerals-in-place 7.8 27 1.1 82
Reserves as of December 31, 1987 732.7 7732 149.4 6,401
Revisions of previous estimale 68.1 15677 3.4 127
Extensions, discoveries and other additions 14.8 502 30 743
Production (72.2) {1,637) (2.4) {691)
Purchase/(sale) of minerals-in-place (1.2) 71 17 79
Reserves as of December 31, 1988 742.2 8,245 155.6 6,659
Proved developed reserves as of December 31 :
1986 7021 6,845 1426 5,206
1987 694.4 6,562 149.4 6,024
1988 697.6 6,706 154.4 6,298

“IGross working interest reserves.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Columbia Gas System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

STANDARDIZED MEASURE OF DISCOUNTED FUTURE NET CASH FLOWS

United Slates Canada Total
($ in millions) 1988 1987 1986 1988 1987 1986 1988 1987 1986
Future cash inflows 1,880.9 1,688.1 1,663.8 280.3 2812 2419 2,161.2 1969.3 19057
Future production costs (351.0) (355.7) (375.5) (55.5) (53.1) (49.9) (406.5) (408.8) (425.4)
Future development costs (102.0) {131.5) (127.8) (10.0) (6.2) (4.6) (112.0) (137.7) (132.4)
Future income tax expense (439.7) (357.0) (345.2) (54.0) (62.3) (51.3) (493.7) (419.3) (396.5)
Future net cash flows 988.2 843.9 8153 160.8 159.6 136.1 1,149.0 1,0035 951.4

Less 10% discount 471.9 386.6 382.7 78.5 823 714 550.4 468.9 4541
Standardized measure

of discounted future

net cash flows 516.3 457.3 432.6 82.3 7.3 64.7 598.6 5346 4973

Future cash inflows are computed by applying year end
prices to estimated future production of proved oil and
gas reserves. Future expenditures (based on year end
costs) represent those costs to be incurred in develop-
ing and producing the reserves. Discounted future net
cash flows are derived by applying a 10% discount rate,
as required by FASB rules, to the future net cash flows.
This data is not intended to reflect the actual economic
value of the Corporation’s oil and gas producing prop-
erties or the true present value of estimated future

cash flows since many arbitrary assumptions are

United States

used. The data does provide a means of comparison
among companies through the use of standardized
measurement techniques.

A reconciliation of the components resulting in changes
in the standardized measure of discounted cash flows
attributable to proved oil and gas reserves for the three
years ending December 31, 1988, follows:

Canada Total

($ in millions) 1988 1987 1986

1988 1987 1586 1988 1987 1986

Beginning of year 457.3 432.6 520.6

77.3 64.7 84.8 534.6 497.3 605.4

Oil and gas sales, net of

production costs (121.2) (117.8) (130.7) (7.4) (8.8) (6.1) (128.6) (126.6) (136.8)
Net changes in prices

and production costs 76.0 229 (236.2) (8.1) 8.5 (45.8) 67.9 314 (282.0)
Extensions, discoveries :

and other additions,

net of related costs 20.8 342 226 6.6 10.0 1.7 27.4 442 24.3
Revisions of previous

estimates, net of

related costs 80.1 30.7 316 23 20 6.9) 82.4 32.7 24.7
Accretion of discount 64.0 60.5 86.8 10.7 8.9 14.0 74.7 69.4 100.8
Net change in income faxes (37.2) 9.9) 174.5 2.8 (5.9) 31.2 (34.4) (15.8) 205.7
Other (23.5) 41 (36.6) (1.9) (2.1) (8.2) (25.4) 2.0 (44.8)
End of year 516.3 457.3 4326 82.3 773 64.7 598.6 534.6

497.3

The estimated discounted future net cash flows
increased during 1988 primarily due to changes in
prices and production costs and revisions of previous
estimates.



COMMON STOCK DATA
The Columbia Gas System, Inc.
Number of Market Price

Year Shares Traded (000) High $ _Lou\fsi )
1968 47,906 44% Y
1987 3149 e 3w
186 26311 ® %
1985 29135 40 26%
o84 14624 e 27
08 o4 ¥ ok
1982 e W 267%
1981 6692 T 2%
1980 _ 10,297 47 3w
1979 7% 40% 254

Dividend Reinvestment—Columbia
offers a Dividend Reinvestment Plan
to its common stockholders which
provides a convenient and econom-
ical method of acquiring additional
shares of Columbia Comman Stock
through the reinvestment of quarterly
cash dividends, and optional

cash payments.

There is a brokerage commission
on shares purchased through the
Plan. Participation in the Plan may
be discontinued at any time, in which
case you will receive a stock certifi-
cate, or if you prefer, cash for shares
credited to your account. Participants
will be treated for federal income tax
purpases as having received a cash
dividend and will be taxed on the full
amount of the dividend utilized to
purchase additional shares.

Common stockholders desiring
a complete description of the Plan
should request a copy of the Pros-
pectus by writing to: Columbia
Dividend Reinvestment, Stockholder
Services Department, P.O. Box 2318,
Columbus, Ohio 43216.

Additional Information—A supple-
mentary report containing more
detailed operating, financial and
statistical data on the Columbia Gas
System is prepared each year for
stockholders and others interested
in such information. A copy of Form
10-K filed annually with the Securities
and Exchange Commission is also
available. A copy of either document
may be obtained by writing to: Sec-
retary, The Columbia Gas System,
Inc., 20 Montchanin Road, Wilming-
ton, Delaware 19807.

Investor Information—Security ana-
lysts, investment managers, brokers
and others with financial questions
should contact D. W. McFarland,
Vice President for Investor Relations,
Columbia Gas System Service Cor-
poration, at Corporate Headquarters,
or call directly at (302) 429-5363.

Annual Meeting—The Corporation’s
1989 Annual Meeting of Stockholders
will be held at the Hotel duPont,
Wilmington, Delaware, on April 21,
1989 at 1:00 p.m. Proxy material will

be mailed on or about March 20, 1989.

DIVIDEND DISBURSEMENT AND
CERTIFICATE INQUIRIES:

The Columbia Gas System, Inc.

Stockholder Services Department

P.O. Box 2318

Columbus, Ohio 43216

COMMON STOCK LISTED:

New York Stock Exchange
Philadelphia Stock Exchange
Toronto Stock Exchange

TICKER SYMBOL: CG

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN:

The Columbia Gas System, Inc.
Stockholder Services Dept.
P.O. Box 2318

Columbus, Ohio 43216

TRANSFER AGENTS AND REGISTRARS:
Harris Trust Company of New York
Corporate Trust Department

77 Water Street 4th Floor

New York, New York 10005

The National Trust Company
Shareholder Relations

4 King Street West

Toronto, Ontario, Canada M5H 3W7

TRUSTEE AND PAYING AGENT
FOR DEBENTURES:

Morgan Guaranty Trust
Company of New York

Security Holder Relations

30 West Broadway

12th Floor

New York, New York 10015
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The Columbia Gas System, Inc.
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Glossary

Defined below are some generally
used energy industry terms.

Btu—Abbreviation for British thermal
unit, a measure of heating value—the
amount of heat required to raise the
temperature of one pound of water
one degree Fahrenheit.
Cogeneration—Process in which two
forms of energy, often electrical and
thermal (in the form of hot water), are
produced simultaneously from a sin-
gle fuel source, such as natural gas.
Cubic Foot—measured in thousands
(Mcf), millions (Mmcf), billions (Bcf)—
The most common measurement of
gas volume. It is the amount of gas
required to fill a volume of one cubic
foot under stated conditions of tem-
perature and pressure.

Degree Day—A measure of the cold-
ness of the weather experienced.

Dekatherm—A measure of heating
value meaning one million Btu's. One
dekatherm roughly equals one thou-
sand cubic feet of gas (one Mcf) in
heating value.

Development—The drilling and
related activities necessary after
initial discovery of oil or gas to

begin production.

Distribution Company-Utility which
sells gas to local residential, com-
mercial and industrial consumers.
Also referred to as a local distribution
company (LDC).

Exploratory Well-A well drilled to a
previously untested geologic struc-
ture to determine the presence of

oil or gas.

Federal Energy Regulatory Commis-
sion (FERC)-The federal agency
that has regulatory jurisdiction over
the System’s interstate natural gas
operations. The FERC is an inde-
pendent agency within the U.S.
Department of Energy.

Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG)—Natural
gas that has been liquefied by reduc-
ing its temperature to minus 260°F at
atmospheric pressure. In volume it
occupies 1/600 the space of the gas
in its vapor state. LNG can be trans-
ported in insulated tankers and
stored in insulated tanks. It returns

to a vaporous state when warmed.

Market-Sensitive Contract—A contract
whose pricing and sales quantity
terms can be adjusted to reflect
changes in supply and demand
conditions.

Minimum Bill-A provision in a gas
purchase contract specifying a min-
imum volume of gas the purchaser

is obligated to pay for on an

annual basis.

Open Access—A transportation plan
under which pipelines that agree to
transport natural gas for one customer
are reguired to transport gas for all
customers on a nondiscriminatory basis.

Reserves—The amount of commer-
cially recoverable gas or oil estimated
to lie within a given reservoir.
Sales/Transportation Service—Under
traditional sales service agreements,
gas pipeline companies purchase gas
from suppliers, transport the gas to
customers and resell it to them. Under
transportation service agreements,
pipelines transport gas supplies for
customers who have purchased the
gas directly from other parties.

Spot Market Sales—Short-term con-
tract sales of natural gas, crude oil,
refined petroleum products or LP-Gas.
Take-or-Pay—A clause in a gas supply
contract providing for a minimum
quantity of gas to be paid for, whether
or not taken by the purchaser.
Tariff-The rate and general terms
and conditions under which natural
gas will be supplied by a pipeline.
Throughput-Total volume of transpor-
tation volumes and tariff sales; all
gas volumes delivered.



Propane

COLUMBIA GAS
System

20 Montchanin Road, Wilmington, Delaware 19807

PRINTED MATTER

112900-C
MCGILL UNIVERSITY
HOWARD ROSS LIBRARY 0OF MGMT
1001 SHERBROOKE ST W
MONTREAL PQ CANADA H3A 1G5





